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Mission Statement

The Company will:

Aim to gain the confidence of all its stakeholders by earning a
credible reputation for being an innovative enterprise that is
prepared to change in the best interests of its stakeholders.

Continually monitor structural changes in the various sectors of
the economy, and accordingly alter the Company’s business
strategy to benefit from the emerging opportunities.

Focus on changing customer needs and strive to improve tangible
and intangible returns to its customers by providing service and
satisfaction at par with the best in the industry, which would be
reflected in prompt risk evaluation and facility disbursement
procedures and practices.

Consciously share and remain part of all initiatives by the leasing
industry to play a positive role in the evolution of small and
medium-size enterprises to expand the country’s industrial base
and support economic growth, higher employment, and a better
future for all.
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Notice is hereby given that the 32    Annual General Meeting of Pak-Gulf Leasing Company Limited will
be held at the Company's Registered Office/Video link, UNIBRO House, Ground and Mezzanine Floor,
Plot No. 114, 9th East Street, Phase-I DHA, Karachi-75500, on Friday, October 24, 2025 at 04:30 p.m.to
transact the following business:

A. Ordinary Business:

1. To read and confirm the minutes of the Extra-ordinary General Meeting held on April 22, 2025;

2. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year
ended June 30, 2025 together with Directors’ and Auditors' Report thereon;

In accordance with section 223 of the Companies Act, 20107 and pursuant to S.R.O. 389(1)/2023
dated March 21, 2023, the Annual Report of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2025,
including the annual audited financial statements have been uploaded on the website of the
company which can be accessed through the following weblink and QR enabled code;

3. To appoint Auditors for the year ending June 30, 2026 and fix their remuneration. The present
auditors, M/S BDO Ebrahim & Company, Chartered Accountants, retire and being eligible, have
offered themselves for reappointment; and

ANY OTHER BUSINESS

4. To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

By Order of the Board

Company Secretary

Karachi:  October 02, 2025

Notes:

1. The Register of Members of the Company shall remain closed from October 18, 2025 to October
24, 2025 (both days inclusive).

2. The shareholders interested to participate in the AGM through video link are requested to share
below information at companysecretary@pakgulfleasing.com for their appointment and proxy’s
verification at least 48 hours before the time of AGM.
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Weblink

https://www.pakgulfleasing.com/Financials.html

QR Enabled code
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NOTICE OF
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Name of Shareholder CNIC No.    Folio No./CDC Account No. Cell No.      Email Address

Video link for the meeting will be sent to members at their provided email addresses enabling them to
attend the meeting on the given date and time.

Login facility will open thirty (30) minutes before the meeting time to enable the participants to join the
meeting after the identification process. Shareholders will be able to login and participate in the AGM
proceedings through their devices after competing all the formalities required for the identification and
verification of the shareholders.

3. A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting of Members is entitled to
appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf.

4. The instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attorney or other authority under which it
is signed or a notarially certified copy of the power of attorney must be deposited at the registered
office of the Company at least 48 hours before the time of the meeting.

5. CDC account holders will further have to follow the under mentioned guidelines as laid down by
the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

A. For attending the meeting:

(i) In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and / or the person whose
securities are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the regulations,
shall authenticate his/her identity by showing his/her original CNIC or original passport at the
time of attending the meeting.

(ii) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors resolution / power of attorney with specimen
signature of the nominees shall be produced (unless it has been provided earlier) at the time of
the Meeting.

B. For appointing proxies:

(i) In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose securities
are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the Regulations, shall
submit the proxy form accordingly.

(ii) The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers
shall be mentioned on the form.

(iii) Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished
with the proxy form.

(iv) The proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or original passport at the time of meeting.

(v) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution/power of attorney with specimen
signature shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the
Company.

Availability of Annual Audited Financial Statements on the Company’s website

6. In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017, and pursuant to S.R.O. 389(1)/2023
dated March 21, 2023,  the Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year
ended June 30, 2025 are available on the Company’s website
http://www.pakgulfleasing.com/Financials.html, in addition to the annual reports and quarterly
financial Statements for the prior periods.
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Transmission of Annual Audited Financial Statements in Hardcopy

7. In pursuance of directions given by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(SECP) vide SRO. 389(I)/2023, those shareholders who desire to receive Annual Audited Financial
Statements in hard copy, are advised to submit their request for the same on a standard request
form available at the Company’s website i.e. www.pakgulfleasing.com and send the form duly
signed by the shareholder, to the Company’s Share Registrar M/s. THK Associates (Pvt) Limited.
The Company will provide a hard copy of the Annual Report to such members on their request,
free of cost, within seven days of receipt of such request. Further the shareholders are requested
to submit the details of their valid email address to receive the Annual Audited Financial Statements
electronically through e-mail.

CNIC / NTN

8. The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide its notification SRO 831(1)/2012
dated 5 July 2012 require that the dividend warrant(s) should bear CNIC number of the registered
member or the authorized person, except in case of minor(s) and corporate members. Accordingly,
members who have not yet submitted copy of their valid CNIC or NTN in case of corporate
entities, are requested to submit the same to the Company’s Share Registrar. In case of non-
compliance, the Company may withhold dividend, till such time they provide the valid copy of
their CNIC as per law.

E-Mandate

9. After the promulgation of the Companies Act, 2017 the listed companies are obliged to pay cash
dividend through electronic mode only by directly crediting the dividend amount in the designated
bank accounts of the entitled shareholders. Accordingly, the shareholders who hold shares in
physical form are requested to submit the e-dividend mandate to the Company’s registered office
while the shareholders who hold shares in Central Depository Company are requested to submit
the e-dividend mandate to the participants/investor account services of the Central Depository
Company Limited. In case of non-compliance, the Company in line with the directions given by
the regulator will not be able to make payment of dividend.

Filer and Non-Filer Status

10. Pursuant to the provisions of Finance Act, 2025 effective 1 July 2025, deduction of income tax
from dividend payments shall be made on the basis of filers and non-filers as follows:

• For filers of income tax returns 15%
• For non-filers of income tax returns 30%

Income Tax will be deducted on the basis of Active Tax Payers List posted on the Federal Board
of Revenue website. Members seeking exemption from deduction of income tax or are eligible
for deduction at a reduced rate are requested to submit a valid tax certificate or necessary
documentary evidence, as the case may be.

The shareholders who have joint shareholdings held by Filers and Non-Filers shall be dealt with
separately and in such particular situation, each account holder is to be treated as either a Filer
or a Non-Filer and tax will be deducted according to his shareholding. If the share is not
ascertainable then each account holder will be assumed to hold equal proportion of shares and
the deduction will be made accordingly. Therefore, in order to avoid deduction of tax at a higher
rate, the joint account holders are requested to provide the details of their shareholding to the
Share Registrar of the Company.

Deposit of Physical Share in CDC Account

11. As per Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 every listed company shall be required to replace
its physical shares with shares in book-entry form in a manner specified by the Commission. The
Shareholders having physical shareholding are encouraged to open CDC sub-account with any
of the brokers or Investor Account directly with CDC to place their physical shares into scrip-less
form.
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Unclaimed Dividend and/or Bonus Shares

12. Shareholders, who by any reason, could not claim their dividend and/or bonus shares, if any, are
advised to contact our Share Registrar to collect/enquire about their unclaimed dividend and/or
bonus shares, if any.

13. Shareholders are requested to notify change of their addresses, if any immediately.
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It gives me great pleasure to present to the shareholders a review of the performance of the Board of
Directors and its strategic oversight in steering the Company through the financial year ended June 30,
2025.

During the year, Pakistan’s economy showed signs of stabilization and moderate growth, supported by
structural reforms, fiscal prudence, and a declining inflation trend. The State Bank of Pakistan’s decision
to gradually reduce the policy rate to 11% signaled an easing of monetary conditions aimed at reviving
private sector activity and supporting sustainable economic development.

Amid this improving macroeconomic environment, the Board continued to exercise prudent oversight,
prioritizing risk management, compliance, and financial discipline. While conditions became more conducive
toward the end of the fiscal year, the Board adopted a cautious approach throughout most of the period
by focusing on business with financially sound, well-established clients. This approach led to a reduction
in total exposure, consistent with our long-term strategy of preserving capital and ensuring sound returns
for stakeholders.

The Board remained fully compliant with the Code of Corporate Governance, with all Directors possessing
a thorough understanding of their fiduciary responsibilities, the financial reporting framework, and the
evolving regulatory landscape. Cognizant of both the challenges and emerging opportunities, the Board
played an instrumental role in setting strategic direction, evaluating operational performance, and ensuring
that management actions aligned with the Company’s goals and shareholders’ interests.

During the year under review, the Board convened regularly and carried out comprehensive reviews of
business strategies, budgets, investment proposals, compliance reports, and risk management policies.
All significant matters affecting the Company were deliberated transparently, and the decisions were
appropriately recorded in the minutes. The Board maintained oversight of the Company’s adherence to
internal controls, ethical standards, and applicable legal and regulatory requirements.

In accordance with the Code, a formal evaluation of the Board’s performance was conducted, which
confirmed that the Board remained effective and engaged. Its contributions were particularly impactful in
areas of governance, risk oversight, financial discipline, and value creation.

On behalf of the Board, I express our sincere appreciation to the shareholders, customers, regulatory
bodies, and all stakeholders for their continued trust and support. The Board remains committed to
transparency, governance excellence, and sustainable growth as we look ahead to capitalizing on the
improving economic outlook.

Chairman

September 25, 2025
Karachi

Dear Shareholders,

CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
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Dear Shareholders,

Your directors are pleased to present the 32  Annual Report of Pak-Gulf Leasing Company Limited
(PGL), including Financial Statements and the Auditors’ Report, for the year ended June 30, 2025.

OPERATIONAL OVERVIEW

During the year under review, the Company witnessed a slight increase in business volume compared
to the previous year, encouraged by the easing of KIBOR rates during the latter part of the year.
Despite the gradual reduction in borrowing costs, the overall economic environment remained
challenging.

The Company continued its prudent approach to credit risk management. As part of its disciplined
policy, certain overdue cases were transferred to litigation to enhance recovery efforts, which contributed
to a decrease in investment in finance leases and an associated increase in provisions for litigation
cases.

The financial performance remained satisfactory, supported by cash flows from leases written in
previous years and a focus on renewing leases with well-established and creditworthy customers.
The Company’s conservative policy of securing additional collateral, beyond the leased assets, remains
central to mitigating credit risk, differentiating it from other leasing companies that rely solely on leased
assets.

All new business, though limited in number, underwent comprehensive financial and market reputation
assessments, coupled with independent asset valuations and mandatory insurance coverage through
AA-rated insurers, with the Company named as Loss Payee.

The cautious approach to new exposures, combined with effective recovery strategies including
litigation, contributed to a strong recovery rate of 92.51% in FY 2024–25, an improvement over 89%
in the prior year, reflecting the Company’s ongoing commitment to safeguarding its asset quality and
financial position.

ANALYSIS OF THE COMPANY’s OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE IN FY-2024-
25

Leases Written and Disbursed

In FY 2024-25, the Company issued 14 new finance leases and 3 auto-finance loans, amounting to
a total of Rs. 169 million. This compares favorably with the previous year’s issuance of 11 finance
leases and 2 auto-finance loans totaling Rs. 108 million.

The total amount disbursed under lease financing during FY 2024-25 was Rs. 114 million, as compared
to Rs. 78 million in FY 2023-24, reflecting a cautious but growth-oriented approach in a challenging
market environment.

The growth in financing facilities extended and disbursed by the Company over the past six years is
illustrated in the following chart. This growth is closely linked to changes in economic conditions and
interest rates. To highlight this relationship, the movement in KIBOR (Karachi Interbank Offered Rate)
over the same period is also presented in the accompanying chart.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
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Categories of Investment in Leases

Pak-Gulf Leasing Company Limited’s core business activity remains focused on asset-based financing,
in accordance with the various modes permitted by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(SECP).

To maintain a balanced and diversified leasing portfolio, the Company follows a structured Asset
Diversification Policy, ensuring that leased assets are of high quality, broadly spread across various
sectors, and possess strong resale value. This approach minimises portfolio risk and enhances liquidity
in the event of foreclosures or early terminations.
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Average KIBOR (in %age)

22.5
20.5
18.5
16.5
14.5
12.5
10.5

8.5
6.5

3M

3M

6M 12M

12M

6M

2020

12.29

12.23

12.27

2021

7.31

7.43

7.77

2022

10.42

10.83

11.27

2025

14.02

13.83

13.70

2023

18.27

18.35

18.65

2024

21.86

21.89

21.87

Lease / Ijarah / Diminishing Musharaka / Auto-finance loan
disbursement (Rs. in million)

2020 2021 2022

546

785

972

2023

267

2024

78

2025

114

Lease / Ijarah / Diminishing Musharaka / Auto-finance loan
written (Rs. in million)

2020 2021 2022

1,117

1395

2023

375

2024

108

779

2025

169

W.E.F 20 April 2016 Ijarah financing has been discontinued.



Sector-wise Composition of the Lease Portfolio

In addition to evaluating the current and projected value of its asset portfolio, Pak-Gulf Leasing Company
Limited places significant emphasis on sectoral diversification as a core component of its Risk Management
Policy. A well-balanced sector-wise distribution of lease transactions helps reduce exposure to industry-
specific risks and enhances the resilience of the overall portfolio—especially in the context of the evolving
economic landscape in the country.

The Company remains vigilant of macroeconomic indicators and sector-specific trends when making
leasing decisions. This strategic allocation approach enables PGL to safeguard against concentration risk
and to align its portfolio with sectors demonstrating stability, growth potential, and consistent repayment
behavior.
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In selecting assets for lease, thorough evaluations are conducted not only of the asset's immediate utility
and business relevance but also its forced sale value (FSV) over the average life of the financing transaction.
A diligent assessment is made of each asset’s marketability under stressed conditions. The same scrutiny
is applied to collateral securities offered by customers, with the goal of ensuring they meet the Company’s
standards for risk mitigation and recoverability.

In parallel, tax implications and benefits associated with financing specific asset categories are also
carefully analysed to optimise financial performance.

The chart below presents the asset-wise breakdown of the Company’s leasing investments during FY
2024–25:

Main Categories of Investment in Lease

Machinery & Equipment 39%

Others 36%

Vehicle 25%

Machinery & Equipment 39%

Vehicle 25%

Others 36%

Sector-wise Lease portfolio as on 30 June 2025
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Gross And Net Investment in Finance Leases

As of June 30, 2025, the Gross Investment in Finance Leases stood at Rs. 934.4 million, reflecting a
decline from Rs. 1,505 million reported as at June 30, 2024. This reduction is aligned with the Company's
cautious stance on new leasing activity during the year in response to the prevailing macroeconomic
uncertainties.

After accounting for Unearned Income (including mark-up held in suspense of Rs. 145.3 million) and a
Provision for Expected Credit Losses (ECL) of Rs. 50.5 million, the Net Investment in Finance Leases
amounted to Rs. 738.6 million at the end of FY 2024–25. This compares to Rs. 1,182 million at the close
of the previous financial year.
The decline in net investment is consistent with the Company’s strategic approach to prioritise asset quality
and prudent risk assessment over aggressive growth in a volatile economic environment.

The following chart illustrates the trend in Net Investment in Finance Leases over the past six financial
years, including the current year:

Financial Achievements

As of June 30, 2025, the total assets of Pak-Gulf Leasing Company Limited stood at Rs. 1,446 million,
compared to Rs. 1,951 million as of June 30, 2024. This reflects a year-on-year decrease of 25.85%,
primarily attributable to the decline in leasing and financing activity during the year. The reduced business
volume was a direct result of the challenging and uncertain economic environment prevailing in the country,
which prompted the Company to adopt a cautious and conservative lending approach.

Despite the contraction in total assets, the Company remained financially sound, demonstrating prudent
risk management and a strong commitment to preserving portfolio quality and operational sustainability.

The following chart presents the trend in total Balance Sheet footings over the past six financial years,
including the current year:

Balance Sheet Growth (Rs. in Million)

2024

1,951

2020 2021 2022

2,727 2,420
2,902

2023

2,529

2025

1,446

Net Investment in Finance Lease (Rs. in Million)

2024

1,182

2020 2021 2022

2,334

1,964

2,353

2023

1,909

2025

739
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ECONOMIC SCENARIO

In the year under review, the country’s economy witnessed a moderation in inflationary pressures,
primarily due to effective supply-side measures, lower food prices, and favorable base effects. Headline
inflation for FY2024–25 averaged approximately 4.5%, a significant decline from the elevated levels
of recent years.

In response to the easing inflation, the State Bank of Pakistan reduced the policy interest rate to 11%
in May 2025. The Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) maintained this rate in subsequent reviews,
while highlighting ongoing risks stemming from energy price adjustments, global commodity volatility,
and weaknesses in the external sector.

Despite some macroeconomic improvement, the overall cost of doing business remains high. Increases
in energy tariffs and fuel prices continue to feed into input costs, particularly in transportation and
manufacturing. Although consumer purchasing power has improved slightly, it remains vulnerable to
sudden changes in administered prices and international commodity trends. Political uncertainty,
particularly around the electoral cycle, and broader geopolitical tensions continue to weigh on business
confidence.

Profitability Performance

After-tax Profit for the FY 2024-25 at Rs. 73.60 million is Rs. 5.2 million less as compared to Rs.
78.80 million for FY-2023-24.

EPS for FY-2024-25 at Rs. 1.49 / share is Rs. 0.10 / share less as compared to Rs. 1.59/ share for
FY-2023-24, due to decrease in revenue and provision for litigation cases.

Gross Revenue for FY 2024-25 at Rs. 222 million is Rs. 59 million less as compared to Rs. 281
million for FY-2023-24 due to low business and decrease in KIBOR rates.

Leases Written during FY 2024-25 stood at Rs. 169 million, as compared to leases written in FY-
2023-24 for Rs. 108 million.

Lease Amount Disbursed during FY-2024-25 at Rs. 114 million is more than the corresponding
amount of Rs. 78 million during FY-2023-24.

Equity of your Company, as per NBFC Regulations, as at June 30, 2025 amounted to Rs. 694 million,
which is Rs. 194 million in excess of the Minimum Equity Requirement of Rs. 500 million.

(Rupees in Million)

Income

Administrative Expenses

Financial Charges

Profit before provision

Profit before Taxation

Provision for Taxation (including Deferred Tax)

Profit after Taxation

Un-appropriated Profit Brought Forward

Profit Available for Appropriation

Appropriations

Transfer to Statutory Reserve

Dividend

Total Appropriations

Un-appropriated Profit Carried Forward

Earnings Per Share (In Rupees)

Comparative Analysis of Profitability Performance
For the year ended 30th June

Change
%

-20.93%

1.31%

-49.22%

-14.69%

-26.54%

-51.05%

-6.59%

70.80%

34.46%

-6.59%

100.00%

1233.31%

-89.78%

-6.29%

2025

222.46

58.40

39.37

124.69

105.01

31.40

73.60

152.08

225.68

14.72

195.41

210.13

15.55

1.49

2024

281.36

57.65

77.54

146.17

142.95

64.15

78.80

89.04

167.84

15.76

-

15.76

152.08

1.59

+ or (-)
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On the external front, foreign exchange liquidity has shown moderate improvement. However, Pakistan’s
structural challenges persist. The country remains reliant on external financing, while upcoming debt
repayments continue to put pressure on foreign exchange reserves. These pressures raise the risk of
further currency depreciation and could affect the timely import of essential raw materials.

Amid these conditions, the Company’s management has taken proactive steps to mitigate potential risks.
Key initiatives include enhanced cost control measures, optimisation of working capital, and active
monitoring of policy developments and supply chain disruptions.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

As of June 30, 2025, Pakistan’s economic outlook reflects cautious optimism. Real GDP growth is
projected at approximately 2.7%, supported by a gradual recovery in domestic demand, moderating
inflation, and early signs of macroeconomic stability.

The reduction in the policy interest rate to 11% by the State Bank of Pakistan marks a shift toward a
more growth-supportive stance, following a prolonged period of monetary tightening. Inflation has
started to ease due to lower global energy prices, improved food supply, and administrative controls.
The external sector has also shown signs of stability, with support from remittances and controlled
import levels.

Nevertheless, the overall macroeconomic environment remains fragile. Fiscal constraints, high debt
servicing obligations, and external vulnerabilities continue to challenge the pace of recovery. The
Government’s ongoing structural reforms — particularly in taxation, energy pricing, and public sector
efficiency — are critical for long-term sustainability but may pose short-term challenges.

Despite the challenges, the Company remains strong and focused on creating long-term value.
Management is committed to handling changes in the economy with a careful and flexible approach.
By managing risks well, using resources wisely, and improving efficiency, the Company aims to protect
the interests of its stakeholders.

Regulatory and Taxation

The withdrawal of the depreciation allowance on plant and machinery installed in backward areas
under Section 23A of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, has negatively impacted both the Company’s
leasing operations and broader industrialisation efforts in rural areas. This measure previously served
as a critical incentive for investment in underdeveloped regions.

Separately, the limit on depreciation allowance for passenger transport vehicles not plying for hire
was increased from Rs. 2.5 million to Rs. 7.5 million—initially a positive move following extensive
industry engagement. However, the benefit was effectively offset by the sharp devaluation of the Pak
Rupee, which caused a significant spike in vehicle prices. As a result, the intended relief proved
largely ineffective for leasing companies.

The Company continues to actively engage with regulatory bodies to seek reforms that support the
sustainable growth of the leasing sector.

GENDER DIVERSITY

At Pak-Gulf Leasing Company Limited, we strongly believe in promoting gender diversity as a key
driver of innovation, inclusive culture, and business sustainability. Diverse teams bring varied
perspectives, challenge conventional thinking, and improve decision-making—qualities that are vital
for success in today’s dynamic business environment.

The Company is committed to providing equal opportunities across all levels and functions, fostering
a workplace that values equity, respect, and inclusion.

For the year ended June 30, 2025, the Gender Pay Gap statistics are as follows:
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Mean Gender Pay Gap: -99.46%
Median Gender Pay Gap: -190.48%

(Note: A negative gender pay gap indicates that, on average, women earn more than men within the
organisation.)

Any other data /detail as deemed relevant: NIL

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL & GOVERNANCE (ESG) STANDARDS

The Company is fully committed to upholding the highest standards of corporate governance and
aligns its operations with globally recognised Environmental, Social, and Governance (ESG) principles,
in accordance with the regulatory framework provided by the Securities and Exchange Commission
of Pakistan (SECP).

Key ESG focus areas include:

• Environmental: Reduction of carbon footprint, energy efficiency, and responsible resource
utilisation.

• Social: Employee well-being, workplace diversity, community support, and customer
responsibility.

• Governance: Ethical business conduct, transparency, accountability, and compliance with
statutory obligations.

The Company continuously reviews and improves its ESG framework to reflect international best
practices and address evolving stakeholder expectations.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Pak-Gulf Leasing Company Limited adheres to the provisions of the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019, as applicable, both in letter and spirit. The Review Report
of the External Auditors to the members, detailing the Company’s compliance with the Code, is
appended to this report.

Board of Directors

The most recent election of the Board was conducted at the Extraordinary General Meeting (EOGM)
held on April 22, 2025. All retiring directors were re-elected, with the exception of Mr. Fawad Salim
Malik, who did not seek reappointment. In his place, Mr. Yousuf Jan Muhammad, a former director
of the Company, consented to act as director and was duly appointed.

As of June 30, 2025, the Board of Directors of the Company comprises the following members:

S.No. Name of Member
   1 Mr. Sohail Inam Ellahi
   2 Mr. Pervez Inam
   3 Brig. Naveed Nasar Khan (Retd.)
   4 Mr. Ismail H. Ahmed
   5 Mr. Jan Ali Khan Junejo
   6 Mr. Naeem Ali Muhammad Munshi
   7 Ms. Naueen Ahmed
   8 Brig. Haris Nawaz (Retd)
   9 Mr. Yousuf Jan Muhammad
   10       Mr. Mahfuz-ur-Rehman Pasha

As of June 30, 2025, the Board of Directors of Pak-Gulf Leasing Company Limited comprises a total of
ten (10) members, including:
• Nine (9) male directors
• One (1) female director
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The current composition of the Board reflects a balanced mix of expertise and roles:

• Three (3) Independent Directors
• Six (6) Non-Executive Directors
• One (1) Executive Director, represented by the Chief Executive Officer

In line with regulatory requirements, four (4) directors have successfully completed the Directors’ Trainig
Program (DTP) as prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), while
one (1) director qualifies for exemption based on relevant experience and credentials.

The Company recognises the importance of continuing education and regulatory awareness at the Board
level. Throughout the year, the Company Secretary ensured that all significant developments in the
domestic and international business environment, along with any regulatory amendments, were timely
communicated to the Board. This included providing analysis and insight on how such changes could
impact the Company’s operations, thereby enabling informed and proactive decision-making by the Board.

Board Meetings

Five (05) Meetings of the Board of Directors of your Company were held during the year under review.
Details of attendance of the BoD Meetings by the individual directors is as follows:

S.No. Name of Member No. of Meetings Attended
1 Mr. Sohail Inam Ellahi 5
2 Mr. Pervez Inam 4
3 Mr. Fawad Salim Malik 3*
4 Brig. Naveed Nasar Khan (Retd.) 2
5 Mr. Ismail H. Ahmed 5
6 Mr. Jan Ali Khan Junejo 5
7 Mr. Naeem Ali Muhammad Munshi 4
8 Ms. Naueen Ahmed 5
9 Brig. Haris Nawaz (Retd) 4
10 Mr. Yousuf Jan Muhammad - **
11 Mr. Mahfuz-ur-Rehman Pasha 4

* Mr. Fawad Salim Malik retired from the position of Director of the Company effective April 21, 2025
** Mr. Yousuf Jan Muhammad was appointed as Director of the Company wef April 22, 2025

Audit Committee

The Board of Directors, in compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019, has established an Audit Committee consisting of the following directors. During the
year under review, Four (04) meetings of the Audit Committee were held. The meeting-wise attendance
details of are given below:

S.No. Name of Member Designation No. of Meetings Attended
1. Ms. Naueen Ahmed Chairman 4
2.  Mr. Pervez Inam Member 3
3. Brig. Naveed Nasar Khan (Retd.) Member 2
4. Mr. Naeem Ali Muhammad Munshi Member 3
5. Mr. Ismail H. Ahmed  Member 4

Human Resource and Remuneration Committee (HR & RC)

In line with the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance, the Human Resource and Remuneration
Committee (HR & RC) of the Board of Directors of your Company comprises of the following members:

S.No. Name of Member Designation

1. Mr. Jan Ali Khan Junejo Chairman
2. Mr. Sohail Inam Ellahi Member
3. Mr. Pervez Inam Member
4. Mr. Ismail H. Ahmed Member
5. Ms. Naueen Ahmed Member
6. Mr. Mahfuz-ur-Rehman Pasha Member
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Risk Management Committee (RMC)

In compliance with the requirements of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations,
2019, the Risk Management Committee (RMC) of the Board of Directors of Pak-Gulf Leasing Company
Limited is duly constituted and comprises the following members:

S.No. Name of Member Designation

1. Mr. Jan Ali Khan Junejo Chairman
2. Mr. Sohail Inam Ellahi Member
3. Mr. Yousuf Jan Muhammad Member
4. Mr. Ismail H. Ahmed Member
5. Mr. Naeem Ali Muhammad Munshi Member
6. Ms. Naueen Ahmed Member

The RMC is responsible for overseeing the Company’s risk management framework, ensuring that all
material risks — including credit, market, operational, liquidity, and compliance risks—are identified,
assessed, and managed appropriately in alignment with the Company’s strategic objectives.

In addition to its core mandate, the Board has also assigned oversight responsibilities related to Sustainability
and Diversity, Equity & Inclusion (DE&I) to the Risk Management Committee. This expanded role reflects
the Company’s commitment to environmental and social responsibility, ethical governance, and the
development of a diverse and inclusive organisational culture.

Directors’ Remuneration

The Company has a well-defined policy in place to ensure formal and transparent procedures for determining
the remuneration of its directors. The remuneration paid for attending Board and Committee meetings is
duly approved by the Board in accordance with applicable corporate governance regulations.

Credit Rating

As a deposit-taking leasing company, Pak-Gulf Leasing Company Limited is required to undergo an annual
credit rating assessment. We are pleased to report that VIS Credit Rating Company Limited, following a
comprehensive review of the Company's performance, reaffirmed the following entity ratings on December
24, 2024:

• Medium to Long-term Rating: A-;
• Short-term Rating: A-2; and
• Outlook: Stable.

These ratings reflect the Company’s adequate creditworthiness, strong risk management framework, and
stable operational performance, even in a challenging macroeconomic environment.

Auditors

For the financial year 2024–25, BDO Ebrahim & Co., Chartered Accountants, served as the Statutory
Auditors of the Company. The retiring auditors, being eligible for reappointment, have expressed their
willingness to continue for the financial year 2025–26.

On the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors has approved the proposal to re-
appoint BDO Ebrahim & Co., Chartered Accountants, as the statutory auditors of the Company for FY
2025–26, subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and finalization
of remuneration.

The Board places on record its appreciation for the high standards of professionalism, integrity, and
objectivity demonstrated by BDO Ebrahim & Co. in the performance of their duties.

Acknowledgements

The Board of Directors expresses its sincere appreciation to the management team and all staff members
for their dedication, professionalism, and relentless commitment throughout the year. Despite a turbulent
economic climate, their efforts have enabled the Company to sustain its performance and uphold its
reputation in the leasing and financial services industry.
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We, as representatives of the shareholders, reaffirm our commitment to supporting the management in
strengthening the Company's position and fostering future growth. We are confident that our team will
continue to serve customers with the same zeal and dedication as they have in previous years.

The Board also acknowledges with gratitude the ongoing support and regulatory guidance extended by
the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), which plays a pivotal role in the development
and governance of the financial services sector. We also appreciate the NBFI & Modaraba Association
of Pakistan for its continued assistance in safeguarding and promoting the interests of the Company and
the sector at large.

Lastly, we extend our heartfelt thanks to our valued Shareholders, Customers, Bankers, Investors, and
Stakeholders for their trust, cooperation, and continued support. We look forward to nurturing these
relationships and building on them in the years to come.

Statements in Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance

The Board of Directors has reviewed the Code of Corporate Governance and confirms the correctness
of the following statements to the best of its knowledge and belief:

• Financial statements prepared by the management of Pak-Gulf Leasing Company Limited present
fairly, its state of affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

• Proper books of account of the Company have been maintained.

• Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of the financial
statements and the accounting estimates presented in the report are based on reasonable and
prudent judgment.

• International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in
preparation of financial statements and any departures therefrom have been adequately disclosed
and explained.

• The system of internal control is sound in design, and has been effectively implemented and
monitored.

• There is no significant doubt upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

• There was no trade in shares of the Company, carried out by its directors, CEO, COO, CFO,
Company Secretary, Head of Internal Audit and/or their spouses and minor children.

• There has been no material departure from best practices of corporate governance, as detailed
in the listing regulations.

Pattern of Shareholding

Pattern of Shareholdings, as required by the Code of Corporate Governance, as at June 30, 2025, is
appended at the end of this Report.

Significant deviations in the operating results, from the preceding financial year, have been explained at
the beginning of this Report, along with reasons thereof.



Statutory Payment of Rs. 3,849,952 on account of taxes, duties, levies and/or charges was outstanding
against the Company as on June 30, 2025.

Value of Investments of the Staff Provident Fund stood at Rs. 10,217,245 as at June 30, 2025. This
represents funds placed with a rated commercial bank and investment in the registered units of the National
Investment Trust.

Chief Executive Officer Director

September 25, 2025
Karachi
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Key Operating and Financial Data for the last six (6) years 2020 – 2025

Year ended 30th June

Operational Results:

Revenues

Lease Revenue

Profit before Taxation

Profit after Taxation

Finance Cost

(Provision)/Reversal for

Potential Lease & Loan Losses

(Provision)/ Reversal against

lease receivables held under

litigation

Final/Interim Dividend %

Interim / Bonus Issue

Balance Sheet:

Shareholders Equity

Surplus on Revaluation of Assets

Other Reserves

Working Capital

Non-current Liabilities

Long-term Loans

Investments

Financial Ratios:

Income / Expense Ratio

Earning per Share (in Rs)

Debt / Equity Ratio

Current Ratio

Rupees

95 shares for every
100 shares

265,444,647

245,567,212

21,619,234

10,894,248

114,025,954

(30,838,117)

(20,437,925)

2.50%

-

655,727,867

90,504,204

405,412,115

381,076,282

1,262,394,151

29,166,665

64,508,233

1.46

0.43

0.68

1.53

2020

206,094,628

191,485,801

28,015,220

24,566,337

42,062,089

3,625,701

(78,549,749)

0.00%

-

675,435,528

90,504,204

424,678,818

186,123,903

1,016,256,185

95,833,329

34,002,899

2.00

0.97

0.42

1.29

2021

255,230,917

228,427,580

167,687,787

146,979,027

69,054,807

(10,807,355)

56,458,682

10%

 -

796,707,062

90,504,204

543,640,182

26,801,934

1,330,132,844

133,333,324

55,205,847

1.92

2.97

0.91

1.04

2022

262,202,401

227,292,442

78,816,891

56,635,687

89,848,800

(47,207,690)

6,334,065

35.00%

737,474,869

90,504,204

244,318,378

490,189,387

1,016,637,986

104,166,661

55,575,097

1.84

1.14

0.86

1.72

2023

281,355,563

218,733,152

142,947,672

78,798,526

77,541,090

(1,969,975)

(793,763)

0.00%

-

815,948,770

90,504,204

325,141,208

623,281,718

702,126,736

37,500,000

40,549,837

2.08

1.59

0.33

2.84

2024

222,464,272

145,222,153

105,006,237

73,604,310

39,372,362

6,880,599

(28,563,650)

22% & 17.5%

-

694,215,695

90,504,204

205,746,496

428,586,973

411,412,394

4,166,666

49,311,562

2.28

1.49

0.17

2.76

2025
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2025 3,849,952

202510,217,245

2025 25

2020 2021 2022 20242023

2.50%

-

655,727,867

90,504,204

405,412,115

381,076,282

1,262,394,151

29,166,665

64,508,233

0.00%

-

675,435,528

90,504,204

424,678,818

186,123,903

1,016,256,185

95,833,329

34,002,899

10.00%

-

796,707,062

90,504,204

543,640,182

26,801,934

1,330,132,844

133,333,324

55,205,847

0.00%

-

815,948,770

90,504,204

325,141,208

623,281,718

702,126,736

37,500,000

40,549,837

35.00%

737,474,869

90,504,204

244,318,378

490,189,387

1,016,637,986

104,166,661

55,575,097

/

1.92

2.97

0.91

1.04

1.84

1.14

0.86

1.72

2.00

0.97

0.42

1.29

1.46

0.43

0.68

1.53

2.08

1.59

0.33

2.84

95

2025

22% & 17.5%

-

694,215,695

90,504,204

205,746,496

428,586,973

411,412,394

4,166,666

49,311,562

2.28

1.49

0.17

2.76
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2020

265,444,647

245,567,212

21,619,234

10,894,248

114,025,954

(30,838,117)

(20,437,925)

2021

206,094,628

191,485,801

28,015,220

24,566,337

42,062,089

3,625,701

(78,549,749)

2022

255,230,917

228,427,580

167,687,787

146,979,027

69,054,807

(10,807,355)

56,458,682

2024

281,355,563

218,733,152

142,947,672

78,798,526

77,541,090

(1,969,975)

(793,793)

2023

262,202,401

227,292,442

78,816,891

56,635,687

89,848,800

(47,207,690)

6,334,065

222,464,272

145,222,153

105,006,237

73,604,310

39,372,362

6,880,599

(28,563,650)

2025

2025

20202025
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(RMC)

(RMC)
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4

3

2

3

4

5

4

3*

2

5

5

4

5

4

-**

4

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10
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-99.46%

-190.48%

2025
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2025

222.46

58.40

39.37

124.69

105.01

31.40

73.60

152.08

225.68

14.72

195.41

210.13

15.55

1.49
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2024

281.36

57.65

77.54

146.17

142.95

64.15

78.80

89.04

167.84

15.76

-

15.76

152.08

1.59

-20.93%

1.31%

-49.22%

-14.69%

-26.54%

-51.05%

-6.59%

70.80%

34.46%

-6.59%

100.00%

1233.31%

-89.78%

-6.29%

2024-254.5%
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2024-251.492023-241.59

73.60 2024-25

2024-2522259

2024-251142023-2478

2024-251692023-24108

2024

1,182

2020 2021 2022

2,334

1,964

2,353

2023

1,909

2025

739

2025934.420241,505

145.350.5

2024-251,182 2024

6

2025694500

194

5.2
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2024-25

2024

1,951

2020 2021 2022

2,727
2,420

2,902

2023

2,529

2025

1,446

6

302025

25.85%

20251,44620241,951
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Average KIBOR (in %age)

22.5
20.5
18.5
16.5
14.5
12.5
10.5

8.5
6.5

3M

3M

6M 12M

12M

6M

2020

12.29

12.23

12.27

2021

7.31

7.43

7.77

2022

10.42

10.83

11.27

2025

14.02

13.83

13.70

2023

18.27

18.35

18.65

2024

21.86

21.89

21.87

39%

25%

36%

39%36%

30

25%

2024-25
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2020 2021 2022

1,117

1395

2023

375

2024

108

779

2025

169

2020 2021 2022

546

785

972

2023

267

2024

78

2025

114
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92.51% 2024-25

89%

2023-2478

2024-25

32

2025

2024-25141692023-24

112024-25114 108

3

2



*Chief Executive and deemed director
** Ms. Naueen Ahmed (female director) is an Independent Director

Note: The Board of the Company comprises of ten (10) directors including the chief executive
and one-third works out to be 3.33. The fraction 0.33 being less than 0.5 has not been rounded
up to four (4), as three (3) independent directors elected by the shareholders in terms of Section
166 of the Companies Act, 2017 who have the requisite competencies, skills, knowledge, and
experience are considered adequate to discharge and execute their duties competently as per
laws and regulations.

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed
companies, including this company.

4. The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have
been taken to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and
procedures.

5. The Board has developed a vision / mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies of the Company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the
significant policies along with their date of approval or updating is maintained by the Company.

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have
been taken by the Board / shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Companies
Act, 2017 (the Act) and the Regulations;

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director
elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of the Act
and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of
the Board.

8. The Board of directors has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of
directors in accordance with the Act and the Regulations.

9. Till June 30, 2025, following four (4) directors of the Company have acquired the required
certificate of Directors Training Program while one (1) is exempt from this requirement:

34

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED
COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE

GOVERNANCE)  REGULATIONS, 2019
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1. The total number of directors are ten (10) as per the following categories, and includes Chief
Executive who is a deemed director under Section 188 of the Companies Act 2017:

a. Male: Nine (9)
b. Female: One (1)

2. The composition of the Board of Directors (the Board) as on June 30, 2025 was as follows:

Category Names

Mr. Jan Ali Khan Junejo
Brig. Haris Nawaz (Retd.)
Ms. Naueen Ahmed (**)
Mr. Sohail Inam Ellahi
Mr. Pervez Inam
Brig. Naveed Nasar Khan (Retd)
Mr. Ismail H. Ahmed
Mr. Naeem Ali Muhammad Munshi
Mr. Yousuf Jan Muhammad
Mr. Mahfuz-ur-Rehman Pasha *
Ms. Naueen Ahmed (**)

Independent Directors

Non-Executive Directors

E x e c u t i v e  D i r e c t o r
Female Director
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Directors
i. Mr. Mahfuz-ur-Rahman Pasha
ii. Mr. Pervez Inam
iii. Mr. Ismail H. Ahmed
iv. Mr. Jan Ali Khan Junejo

10. The Board has approved appointment of chief financial officer, company secretary and head of internal
audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant
requirements of the Regulations.

11. Chief financial officer and chief executive officer duly endorsed the financial statements before approval
of the Board.

12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a) Audit Committee
Ms. Naueen Ahmed                           Chairman
Mr. Pervez Inam Member
Brig. Naveed Nasar Khan (Retd.) Member
Mr. Naeem Ali Muhammad Munshi Member
Mr. Ismail H Ahmed Member

b) Human Resources and Remuneration Committee
Mr. Jan Ali Khan Junejo   Chairman
Mr. Sohail Inam Ellahi Member
Mr. Pervez Inam Member
Mr. Ismail H Ahmed Member
Ms. Naueen Ahmed Member
Mr. Mahfuz-ur-Rehman Pasha                Member

c) Risk Management Committee
Mr. Jan Ali Khan Junejo             Chairman
Mr. Sohail Inam Ellahi             Member
Mr. Yousuf Jan Muhammad             Member
Mr. Ismail H Ahmed Member
Mr. Naeem Ali Muhammad Munshi Member
Ms. Naueen Ahmed Member

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the
committee for compliance.

14. The frequency of meetings of the committee were as per following:

a) Audit Committee - (Four quarterly meetings)
b) HR and Remuneration Committee - (One annual meeting)
c) Risk Management Committee - (No meeting)

15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function comprising of Head of Audit who is suitably
qualified and experienced for the purpose and is well conversant with the policies and the procedures
of the Company.

16. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating
under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and
registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with
International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit are
not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the chief executive
officer, chief financial officer, head of internal audit, company secretary or director of the Company.

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other
services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory requirement and
the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

18. We confirm that all the requirements of the Regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have
been complied with.

19. With regard to the Regulation 24, it is stated that the Chief Financial Officer is also working as the Company
Secretary of the Company. The arrangement is in the best interest of the Company as it is cost effective.
Moreover, the workload of the Company Secretary is not much as to justify a full time Company Secretary.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED
COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE

GOVERNANCE)  REGULATIONS, 2019
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED
COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE

GOVERNANCE)  REGULATIONS, 2019
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Chairman
September 25, 2025
Karachi

Sr.
#

1

2

3

4

5

Requirement

The board is responsible for governance and
oversight of sustainability risks and opportunities
and takes appropriate measures to address it.
Further, the board ensures that the Company’s
sustainability and DE&I related strategies are
periodically reviewed and monitored.

It is encouraged that all the directors on their Boards
have acquired the prescribed certification under
any director training program offered by institutions,
local or foreign, that meet the criteria specified by
the Commission and approved by it.

Companies are also encouraged to arrange
training for:
(i) at least one female executive every year under
the Directors’ Training program from year July
2020; and
(ii) at least one head of department every year
under the Directors’ Training program from July
2022.

The Board may constitute a separate committee,
designated as the nomination committee, of such
number and class of directors, as it may deem
appropriate in its circumstances.

The Company may post the following on its
website:
(1) key elements of its significant policies including
but not limited to the following:
(i) communication and disclosure policy;
(ii) code of conduct for members of board of
directors, senior management and other
employees;
(iii) risk management policy;
(iv) internal control policy;
(v) whistle blowing policy;
(vi) corporate social responsibility/sustainability/
environmental, social and governance related
policy.

Explanation

The Board has assigned oversight responsibilities
related to Sustainability and Diversity, Equity &
Inclusion (DE&I) to the Risk Management
Committee (RMC). The RMC will be responsible
for ensuring that sustainability-related risks and
opportunities are effectively identified and managed.
Also, it will ensure that company’s sustainability
and DE&I related strategies are periodically
reviewed and monitored in future.

The Directors of the Board are well acquainted with
the roles and responsibilities and applicable laws
and regulations.  Till June 30, 2025, four (4) directors
of the Company have acquired the required
certificate of Directors Training Program while one
(1) is exempt from this requirement and others will
comply with the requirement in due course of time.

In-house training of key executives, including female
executives, is a continuous process and the
Company will also arrange for Directors’ Training
program of key executives including female
executives in due course of time.

Since the constitution of the Committee is non-
mandatory, therefore the responsibilities prescribed
for the nomination Committee are being taken care
of by the Board of Directors.

Since the Regulation does not require mandatory
disclosure of significant policies on the website,
therefore the Company has not updated the website
accordingly.

Reg #

10A
(1)(3)

(4)

19(1)

19(3)

29

35

20. Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other than regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33
and 36 (non-mandatory requirements) are noted below:
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Gender Pay Gap Statement under Circular 10 of 2024

Following is gender pay gap calculated for the year ended June 30, 2025:

(i) Mean Gender Pay Gap: -99.46%

(ii) Median Gender Pay Gap: -190.48%

(iii) Any other data/ details as deemed relevant: NIL

Chief Executive Officer

GENDER PAY GAP STATEMENT
UNDER CIRCULAR 10 OF 2024

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025
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Gender Pay Gap Statement
under Circular 10 of 2024

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

-99.46%

-190.48%
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Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial OfficerDirector

AS AT JUNE 30, 2025

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Investment property
Intangible assets
Net investment in finance lease
Long-term loans
Long-term security deposits
Total non-current assets
Current assets
Current portion of net investment in finance lease
Current portion of long-term loans
Short term investments
Advance to employees
Prepayments
Taxation - net
Other receivables
Cash and bank balances
Total current assets
Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserve
Total Equity
Non-current liabilities
Long-term deposits
Long-term loan
Lease liabilites
Certificates of investment
Deferred taxation
Total non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Unclaimed dividend
Taxation - net
Accrued mark-up
Current portion of long-term deposits
Current portion of long-term loan
Current portion of lease liabilities
Current portion of certificates of investment
Total current liabilities
Total liabilities
Total Equity and Liabilites

Contingencies and commitments

The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Rupees
Note

5
6
7
8
9
10

9
10
11

22
12
13

14
15

16
17
18
19
20

21

22
23
16
17
18
19

24

2025

 3,487,102
 12,406,338

 175,032,000
 251,125

 535,024,220
 47,467,936

 118,500
 773,787,221

 203,558,098
 19,628,185
 49,311,562

 37,934
 582,795

 16,091,652
 102,223,317
 281,105,376
 672,538,919

 1,446,326,140

 494,711,100
 296,250,700
 790,961,800

 273,764,947
 -

 7,035,517
 7,000,000

 123,611,930
 411,412,394

 34,950,668
 4,747,646

 -
 50,539,284
 45,297,982
 4,166,666
 5,041,318

 99,208,382
 243,951,946
 655,364,340

 1,446,326,140

2024

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

 7,298,508
 17,160,784

 169,884,000
 324,625

 773,389,541
 21,025,572

 118,500
 989,201,530

 408,293,631
 52,100,860
 40,549,837

 4,940
 467,419
-

105,044,504
 354,856,487
 961,317,678

 1,950,519,208

 494,711,100
 415,645,412
 910,356,512

 342,798,193
 4,166,668
 8,662,199

 225,475,007
 121,024,669
 702,126,736

 55,121,276
 3,235,057

 37,977,148
 60,539,007

 139,912,877
 33,333,332
 6,315,124
 1,602,139

 338,035,960
 1,040,162,696
 1,950,519,208



STATETMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025
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The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial OfficerDirector

 145,222,153

 55,850,831
 21,391,288
 77,242,119

 222,464,272

 (58,402,622)
 (39,372,362)
 (97,774,984)
 124,689,288

 (28,563,650)

 -

 2,000,000

 6,880,599

 105,006,237
 (31,401,927)

 73,604,310

 1.49

INCOME

Income from financing operations

Income from other activities
   Return on investments
   Other income

EXPENSES

Administrative and operating expenses
Finance cost

Operating profit before provision

(Provision)/ Reversal against lease receivables held
   under litigation
Reversal/(Provision) for insurance premium and
      other receivables
Reversal/(Provision) for diminishing musharakah
      receivable
Reversal/(Provision) for potential lease and loan
      losses

Profit before taxation
     Taxation
Profit for the year

Earning per share-basic and diluted

25

26
27

28
29

12.4

12.3.1

9.3 & 10.2

30

31

Note 2025

Rupees

 218,733,152

 43,667,655
 18,954,756
 62,622,411

 281,355,563

 (57,648,813)
 (77,541,090)

 (135,189,903)
 146,165,660

(793,763)

 (454,250)

-

 (1,969,975)

142,947,672
(64,149,146)
 78,798,526

 1.59

2024



Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial OfficerDirector

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Net profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year

Items that may not be reclassified to statement of profit or loss
    in subsequent periods:

   Gain on revaluation of FVOCI investments

Total comprehensive income for the year

50

Note 2025

Rupees

 73,604,310

 2,411,863

76,016,173

11

The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

2024

 78,798,526

 2,024,304

 80,822,830



The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial OfficerDirector

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Surplus  on
revaluat ion of

FVOCI
investments

Share
capital

Statutory
reserve

Capital
Reserves

Total
reservesSurplus on

revaluation of
property and
equipment
(note 15.2)

Total
equity

(Rupees)

Balance as at July 1, 2023

Net Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income
   for the year

Transfer to statutory reserve
Balance as at June 30, 2024

Net Profit for year
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the year

Transfer to statutory reserve

First interim dividend for the year ending
   June 30, 2025 @Rs.2.2 per share
Second interim divident for the year ending
   June 30, 2025 @Rs.1.75 per share

Balance as at June 30, 2025

497,711,100

-
-

 -

 -
494,711,100

-
-
-

-

494,711,100

153,725,579

 -
 -

 -

 15,759,705
169,485,284

-
-
-

14,720,862

184,206,146

90,504,204

 -
 -

 -

-
90,504,204

-
-
-

-

90,504,204

1,554,609

-
2,024,304

2,024,304

-
3,578,913

-
2,411,863
2,411,863

-

5,990,776

89,038,190

78,798,526
 -

78,798,526

(15,759,705)
152,077,011

73,604,310
-

73,604,310

(14,720,862)

(108,836,442)

(86,574,443)

15,549,574

334,822,582

 78,798,526
2,024,304

80,822,830

-
415,645,412

73,604,310
2,411,863

76,016,173

-

(108,836,442)

(86,574,443)

296,250,700

829,533,682

78,798,526
2,024,304

80,822,830

-
910,356,512

73,604,310
2,411,863

76,016,173

-

(108,836,442)

(86,574,443)

790,961,800

Unappropriated
profit

Revenue
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial OfficerDirector

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation

Adjustment for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Finance cost
(Reversal)/provision for potential lease and loan losses
Unrealised gain on revaluation of investment property
Provision for lease receivable held under litigation
(Reversal) for diminishing musharakah receivable
Provision for insurance premium and other receivables
Gain on disposal of fixed assets

Operating profit before working capital changes

(Increase) / decrease in current assets
Advance to employees
Other receivables
Prepayments

Decrease in current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Cash generated from operations

Finance cost paid
Tax paid - net
Long-term deposits - net
Long-term loans - net
Net investment in finance lease

Net cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions in property and equipment
Additions in intangible assets
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets
Investments (made) / redeemed during the year
Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Paid against certificates of investment
Dividend paid
Lease payments
Payments of long-term loan installments
Net cash used in financing activities
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the begining of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Note 2025

Rupees

 105,006,237

 5,901,383
 39,372,362
 (6,880,599)
 (5,148,000)
 28,563,650
 (2,000,000)

 -
 937,884

 60,746,680
 165,752,917

 (32,995)
 (41,493,738)

 (115,376)
 (41,642,109)

 (20,170,608)
 103,940,200

 (46,083,864)
 (82,883,465)

 (163,648,141)
 7,744,729

 464,142,542
 179,271,801
 283,212,001

 (369,025)
 -

 4,044,878
 (6,349,862)
 (2,674,009)

 (120,868,764)
 (193,898,296)

 (6,188,709)
 (33,333,334)

 (354,289,103)
 (73,751,111)
 354,856,487
 281,105,376

The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

28
29

9.3 & 10.2
27

12.4

27

22

5
8

18

32

2024

 142,947,672

 5,583,233
 77,541,090

 1,969,975
 (5,148,000)

 793,763
-
454,250
-

  81,194,311
 224,141,983

 91,988
 (90,387,377)

 18,251
 (90,277,138)

 (26,297,471)
107,567,374

 (34,804,482)
 (56,917,345)

 (325,514,754)
 58,218,313

 769,057,502
 410,039,235
 517,606,609

 (5,597,913)
 (367,500)

-
 17,049,564
 11,084,151

 (114,345,983)
 (272,662)

 (10,664,909)
 (66,666,661)

 (191,950,215)
 336,740,545

 18,115,942
 354,856,487



1.1 Pak-Gulf Leasing Company Limited ("the Company") was incorporated in Pakistan on December
27, 1994 as a public limited company under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (The
Companies Act, 2017) and commenced its operations on September 16, 1996.  The Company
is principally engaged in the business of leasing and is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.

1.2 The registered office of the Company is located at UNIBRO House, Ground and Mezzanine
Floor, Plot No. 114, 9th East Street, Phase-1, Defence Housing Authority, Karachi. The Company
also has a branch office located at Office No. 202, 2nd Floor, Divine Mega II, Opp Honda Point,
New Airport Road, Lahore.

1.3 VIS Credit Rating Company Limited (VIS) has assigned a long term credit rating of A- and short
term credit rating of A-2 to the Company on December 24, 2024.

1.4 Regulation 4 of Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008,
requires an existing NBFC with valid deposit taking permission having leasing liscence to maintain,
at all times, minimum equity of Rs. 500 million. The equity of the Company as at June 30, 2025
is Rs. 694.216  million which is Rs. 194.216 million in excess of the minimum equity requirement.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in
Pakistan comprising of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 along with Part
VIIIA of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984;

- Provision of and directive issued under the Non-Banking Finance Companies
(Establishment and Regulations) Rules, 2003 (the NBFC Rules), and Non-Banking
Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the NBFC Regulations).

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, Part VIIIA of the
repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules and the NBFC Regulations differ from
the IFRS Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017,
Part VIIIA of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules and the NBFC Regulations
have been followed.

2.2 Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except
stated otherwise in the relevant notes to the financial statements.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupee which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency.

3. APPLICATION OF NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS TO
PUBLISHED APPROVED ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING STANDARDS

3.1 New accounting standards, amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for
the year ended June 30, 2025.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

53

1 STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS
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3.2 New accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting periods,
beginning on or after the date mentioned against each of them. These standards, amendments
and interpretations are either not relevant to the Company's operations or are not expected to
have significant impact on the Company's financial statements other than certain additional
disclosures.

The following stantdards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended June
30, 2025. These standards, amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the
Company's operations or did not have significant impact on the financial statements other than
certain additional disclosures.

Effective date
(annual periods

beginning on
or after)

January 1, 2024

January 1, 2024

January 1, 2024

January 1, 2024

January 1, 2024

Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' -  Supplier
finance arrangements

Amendments to IFRS 16 'Leases' - Amendments to clarify how a seller-
lessee subsequently measures sale and leaseback transactions

Amendmends to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' -
Classification of liabilities as current or non-current

Amendmends to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Non-
current liabilities with covenants

Amendments to IAS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows' - Supplier finance
arrangements

Effective date
(annual periods

beginning on
or after)

January 1, 2026

January 1, 2026

January 1, 2025

January 1, 2026

January 1, 2026

January 1, 2027

Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' -
Amendments regarding the classification and measurement of financial
instruments

Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' -  Amendments regarding
the classification and measurement of financial instruments

Amendmends to IAS 21 'The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rates' - Lack of Exchangeability

Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' -
Amendments regarding nature-dependent electricity contracts that are
often structured as power purchase agreements (PPAs)

Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' -  Amendments regarding
nature-dependent electricity contracts that are often structured as power
purchase agreements (PPAs)

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of IFRSs and IASs.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

IFRS 1 'First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards' has been issued by IASB effective
from July 01, 2009. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by Securities and Exchange Commission
of Pakistan (SECP)

IFRS 17 - 'Insurance contracts' has been notified by the IASB to be effective for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2023. However SECP has notified the timeframe for the adoption of IFRS - 17 which
will be adopted by January 01, 2026.

IFRS 18 'Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements' has been issued by IASB effective from
January 01, 2027. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by Securities and Exchange Commission
of Pakistan (SECP)

IFRS 19 'Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures' has been issued by IASB effective from
January 01, 2027. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by Securities and Exchange Commission
of Pakistan (SECP)

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

The material accounting polices in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
polices have been consistently applied to all years presented unless otherwise stated.

4.1 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand and at banks are carried at cost. For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents consist of cash in hand and at bank and short term borrowing. Short term borrowings are classified
as current liabilities unless the Company has unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the statement of financial position date.

4.2 Investment property

Investment property is stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the reporting date. Gain or
loss on remeasurement of investment property at fair value is recognised in statement of profit or loss. Fair
value is evaluated annually by an independent professional valuer and hence no depreciation is charged.
Investment property is derecognised when either it has been disposed off or when the investment property
is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. The
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised as income
and expense in the period of derecognition. Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to the statement
of profit or loss as and when incurred. Major renewals and improvements are capitalised and the assets so
replaced, if any, are retired. Gains or losses on disposal of investment property, if any, are included in
statement of profit or loss.

4.3 Other receivables

Other receivables are carried at original invoice amount less an estimate made for doubtful receivables based
on a review of all outstanding amounts at the year end. Balances considered bad and irrecoverable are
written off when considered irrecoverable.

4.4 Net investment in finance lease 

Leases where the Company transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
asset to the lessees are classified as finance leases. A lease receivable is recongnised at an amount equal
to the present value of the minimum lease payments, including any guaranteed residual value, if any. The
difference between the gross lease receivables and the present value of the lease receivables is recognised
as unearned finance income.

Each lease payment received is applied against the gross investment in the finance lease receivable to
reduce both the principal and the unearned finance income. The finance income is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss on a basis that reflects a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment in
the finance lease receivables.

4.5 Long-term loans

Long-term loans are initially recognised at cost being the fair value of consideration. Subsequently, these
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
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4.6 Provision for potential lease losses and provision for terminated leases

The Company applies IFRS 9  general approach for lease and loan losses respectively to determine Expected
Credit Losses (ECL). A lifetime ECL is recorded on  lease and loans in which there has been Significant
Increase in Credit Risk (SICR) from the date of initial recognition and on lease and loans which are credit
impaired as on the reporting date. A 12 months ECL is recorded for  lease and loan which do not meet the
criteria for SICR or “credit impaired” as at the reporting date. To assess whether there is a significant increase
in the credit risk, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the loans and lease as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. The Company also considers
reasonable and supportive forward-looking information in the determination of ECL. The allowance is increased
by provisions charged to the  statement of profit or loss and is decreased by charge-offs, net of recoveries.

Calculating ECL for lease and loan is subject to numerous judgments and estimates. In evaluating the
adequacy of ECL, the management considers various factors, including the nature and characteristics of the
obligor, current economic conditions, credit concentrations or deterioration in collateral, historical loss
experience and delinquencies. The management further considers the impact of forward-looking information
and its resulting impact on the provision for lease and loan portfolio of the Company.

4.7 Property and equipment

Owned assets

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amounts or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other subsequent costs including repairs and maintenance
are charged to the  statement of profit or loss as and when incurred.

Depreciation is charged using the straight line method, whereby the depreciable amount of an asset is written
off over its estimated useful life at the rates specified in note 5 after taking into account residual value, if any.
The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each
statement of financial position date.

Depreciation on additions is charged from the month the assets are put to use while no depreciation is
charged in the month in which the assets are disposed off.

Gains or losses on sale of assets are charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.

4.8 Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognised if it is probable that the future economic benefits attributable to the asset
will flow to the Company and that the cost of such asset can also be measured reliably. 

Intangible assets, where applicable, are amortised from the month when such assets are available for use
on straight line method whereby the cost of an intangible asset is allocated over its estimated useful life, at
the rates given in note 8.

The useful lives of intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether events and
circumstances continue to support an indefinite useful life assessment for the asset.

Software

Costs that are directly associated with identifiable computer software and have probable economic benefits
exceeding one year, are recognised as an intangible asset. Costs include the purchase cost of software,
implementation cost and related overhead cost. Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses thereon.

Expenditure which enhances or extends the performance of computer software beyond its original specification
and useful life is recognised as a capital improvement and added to the original cost of the software.
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4.9 Right-of-use assets and related liabilities

At the inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease based on
whether the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The extension and termination options are incorporated in determination of lease term only when the Company
is reasonably certain to exercise these options.

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and corresponding liabilities at the date at which the leased
assets are available for use by the Company. 

Right-of-use assets are initially measured based on the initial amount of the lease liabilities adjusted for any
lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site
on which it is located, less any lease incentive received. The right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight
line method over the lease term as this method most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption
of future economic benefits. The carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced by impairment losses,
if any. At transition, the Company recognised right to use assets equal to the present value of lease payments.

The lease liabilities are initially measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, or if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its incremental borrowing
rate as the discount rate. Lease payment includes fixed payments with annual increments. The lease liabilities
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate. Payments associated with
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in
the statement of profit or loss.

4.10 Borrowings

Loans and borrowings are recorded at the proceeds received. Finance cost are accounted for on accrual
basis and are shown as interest and mark-up accrued to the extent of the amount remaining unpaid.

Short term borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the statement of financial position date.

Mark up and principal on certificate on investments are due and paid at maturity when otherwise option
by lender.

4.11 Financial instruments

Classification

4.11.1 The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories: 

a) Fair value through profit or loss
b) Fair value through other comprehensive income
c) Amortised cost

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets. The management
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. 

Amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both the following conditions and is not designated
as at fair value through statement of profit or loss:

(i) the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
  cash flows; and

(ii) its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.



Financial assets at FVOCI

A financial asset is measured at FVOCI only if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated
as FVTPL:

1) the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets; and

2) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition, for an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in fair value in OCI, only dividend income is recognised in income statement.
This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

FVOCI financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses arising due to changes
in fair value recognised in OCI.

Financial assets at FVTPL

All other financial assets are classified at FVTPL (for example: equity held for trading and debt securities
not classified either as AC or FVOCI).

In addition, on initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise
meets the requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates
or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period after the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Impairment

The Company recognises loss allowance for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) on financial assets measured
at amortised cost and contract assets. The Company measures loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs. 

Lifetime ECLs are those that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether the financial assets carried at amortised cost are
credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have occurred.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount
of the assets. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no
reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. 

4.11.2 Subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Amortised cost is calculated
using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Financial assets at FVOCI

All financial assets at FVOCI are subsequently measured at fair value. Gains or losses arising due to changes
in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income.

For debt instruments classified as financial assets at FVOCI, the amounts in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to income statement on derecognition of financial assets. This treatment is in contrast to
equity instruments classified as financial assets at FVOCI, where there is no reclassification on derecognition.
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Financial assets at FVTPL

All financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. On
initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise. Gains or losses arising from changes in fair
value recorded in the income statement.

4.11.3 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities  are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred and subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has as unconditional / contractual
right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the statement of financial position date.

4.11.4 Recognition and measurement 

All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration
given and received respectively. These financial assets and liabilities are subsequently measured at fair value
or amortised cost, as the case may be. The particular measurement methods adopted  are disclosed in the
individual policy statements associated with each item. 

4.11.5 Derecognition

The financial assets are de-recognised when the Company loses control of the contractual rights that comprise
the financial assets. The financial liabilities are de-recognised when they are extinguished i.e. when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.

4.12 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements
only when the Company has a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amounts and the Company
intends to settle either on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

4.13 Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently carried at
amortised cost.

4.14 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events
and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each statement of financial position date and are
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

4.15 Taxation and Levy
 
Income tax expense comprises current, final tax and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in
statement of profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in other comprehensive
income in which case it is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. Minimum taxes and final
taxes which are not as taxable income of the are classified as levy before income taxes.

Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the enacted or substantively enacted rates of
taxation after taking into account available tax credits and rebates, if any. The charge for current tax includes
adjustments to charge for prior years which arises from assessments / developments made during the year,
if any.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised using balance sheet method, in respect of temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement
of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using the enacted or substantively enacted rates of taxation.
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The Company recognises deferred tax asset to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
for the foreseeable future will be available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax
assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be
realised. 

Levy

The final tax is the levy which is the outflow of resources embodying economic benefits that is
imposed by governments on the entities in accordance with legislation (i.e. laws and / or
regulations). The final tax is charged / withheld / paid on certain income streams for certain tax
payers and is not allowed to carry forward tax losses. Final tax paid is considered to be full and
final discharge of tax liability of an entity for a tax year for related income stream and it is not
based on taxable income. Final tax is presented separately from the current tax in statement of
profit or loss.

4.16 Defined contribution plan

The Company operates an approved defined contributory provident fund (Fund) for all its permanent
employees. Monthly contributions are made to the Fund equally by the Company and the
employees in accordance with the rules of the Fund. The contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they become due.

4.17 Employees' compensated absences 

The Company accounts for the liability in respect of employees' compensated absences in the
year in which these are earned. Provision to cover the obligations under the scheme is made
based on the current leave entitlements of the employees and by using the current salary level
of the employees.

4.18 Revenue recognition

Finance leases

The Company follows the finance lease method in accounting for the recognition of lease income.
Under this method, the unearned lease income i.e. the excess of gross lease rentals and the
estimated residual value over the cost of the leased assets is deferred and taken to income over
the term of the lease contract, so as to produce a systematic return on the net investment in
finance lease. Unrealised lease income is held in suspense account, where necessary, in
accordance with the requirements of the NBFC Regulations. Documentation charges, late payment
charges and processing fee are taken to income when realised. 

Auto finance 

Income on loan is recognised on a time proportionate basis using effective interest rate method
taking into account the principal outstanding and applicable rate of interest / return thereon. 

Other than mentioned above, the income is recorded in other income on receipt basis.

4.19 Return on investments

Return on debt securities and deposits accounts is recognised using the effective interest method.
Dividend income from investments in recognised when the company's right to receive the dividend
is established.

4.20 Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) for its shareholders. Basic
EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS
is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effect of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares, if any.
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4.21 Dividend distribution and transfer between reserves

Dividend distribution (including stock dividend) to the Company's shareholders and transfer
between reserves, except appropriations which are required under law, are recognised in the
financial statements in the period in which such dividends are declared or such transfers between
reserves are made.

4.22 Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from
which it may earn revenues and incur expenses including revenues and expenses that relate to
transactions with any of the Company’s other components. All operating segments’ results are
reviewed regularly by the Company’s chief operating decision maker to make decisions about
resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete
financial information is available.

The Company has two primary business segments, namely, Lease finance and Auto finance.

Revenue, expenses and income taxes that are managed on an overall basis are not allocated
to any segment.

Assets, liabilities and capital expenditures that are directly attributable to segments have been
assigned to them. Those assets and liabilities, which cannot be allocated to a particular segment
on a reasonable basis, are reported as unallocated corporate assets and liabilities. 

4.23 Accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the result of which form the basis of making, judgments about carrying values of assets and
liabilities. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 

The estimates and judgments that have a significant effect on the financial statements are in
respect of the following:

i) Classification and valuation of investments (notes 11).
ii) Depreciation on property and equipment (note 5).
iii) Expected credit loss (note 4.6).
iv) Contingencies (note 24.1).
v) Provision for current and deferred taxation (notes 20, 22 and 30).
vi) Classification and provision of net investment in finance lease (notes 9 and 9.3)
vii) Measurement of investment property (note 7).
viii) Determination and measurement of right of use assets and lease liabilities (notes 6 and

18)
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Opening net book value
Addition during the year
Depreciation charged during the year
Closing net book value

Depreciation rate

6. RIGHT OF USE ASSETS

 17,160,784
 -

 (4,754,446)
 12,406,338

22%

2025

Rupees
Note

28

 147,563
 21,616,348
 (4,603,127)
 17,160,784

22%

2024

5. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

 7,298,508
 369,025

 (3,106,994)
 (1,073,437)

 3,487,102

 26,674,935
 (23,187,833)

 3,487,102

 2,637,826
 5,597,913
 (937,231)
 7,298,508

 30,436,288
 (23,137,780)

 7,298,508

1,231,118
 200,000

 -
 (568,657)

 862,461

 6,859,666
 (5,997,205)

 862,461

 76,307
 1,528,000
 (373,189)
 1,231,118

 6,659,666
 (5,428,548)

 1,231,118

33.33

 4,786,943
 -

 (3,106,994)
 (139,795)
 1,540,154

 10,625,433
 (9,085,279)

 1,540,154

 1,571,655
 3,494,878
 (279,590)
 4,786,943

 14,755,811
 (9,968,868)

 4,786,943

20

 483,034
 169,025

 -
 (160,629)

 491,430

 4,445,003
 (3,953,573)

 491,430

 309,987
 269,550
 (96,503)
 483,034

 4,275,978
 (3,792,944)

 483,034

20

 797,413
 -
 -

 (204,356)
593,057

 3,576,636
 (2,983,579)

 593,057

 679,877
 305,485

 (187,949)
 797,413

 3,576,636
 (2,779,223)

 797,413

10

 -
 -
 -
 -
 -

 1,168,197
 (1,168,197)

 -

 -
 -
 -
 -

 1,168,197
 (1,168,197)

 -

5

Year ended June 30, 2025
Net carrying value basis
Opening net book value (NBV)
Additions
Disposal (NBV)
Depreciation charge
Closing - net book value (NBV)

Gross carrying value basis
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
NBV

Year ended June 30, 2024
Net carrying values (NBV)
Opening - net book value (NBV)
Additions
Depreciation charge
Closing - Net book value (NBV)
Gross carrying values basis
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
NBV

Depreciation rate % per annum

Total
Computer
equipment

VehiclesOffice
equipment

Furniture
and

fittings

Leasehold
improvementsDescription

Rupees

5.1 The cost of fully depreciated assets which are still in use as at June 30, 2025 is Rs. 22.65 million
(2024: Rs. 22.32 million).

5.2 Depreciation amounting Rs.1.073 million (2024: Rs. 0.937 million)  are charged to administrative
and operating expenses.

5.3 The detail of property and equipment disposed off during the year is as follows:

2025

Vehicle
  BDQ-234
  ADU - 907

Particulars
of

buyer

Mode of
disposal

Gain on
Disposal

Sale
Proceesds

WDVOriginal
Cost

Key Executive
Insurance claim
of theft loss

Lease
Scrap sale

 419,385
 218,499

 3,494,878
 250,000

 3,075,493
 31,501

 3,494,878
 635,500

6.1 This represent registered office located in Phase-1, DHA, Karachi and branch office located at
New Airport Road, Lahore. Term of the lease is five years and the incremental borrowing rate
is 24.27% (1 year KIBOR plus 1%) .
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7.1 Fair value measurement

Fair value measurement of investment property is based on the valuations carried out by an
independent valuer M/s. Akbani and Javed Associates as on June 30, 2025 on the basis of
market value.

Fair value measurement of revalued premises is based on assumptions considered to be level
2 inputs due to significant observable inputs used in valuation.

7.2 Valuation techniques used to derive level 2 fair values - investment property

Fair value of investment property has been derived using a sales comparison approach. The
valuation is considered on the basis of location, needs of the buyer, the overall prevailing market
situation and other consideration associated with such type of property. The most significant
input in this valuation approach is price / rate per square feet in particular locality.

7.3 Forced sale value - investment property

Forced sales value of investment property as at June 30, 2025 amounted to Rs. 148.777 million
(2024: Rs. 144.401 million).

7.4 Location and area - investment property

The investment property is located at Office No. 125, 126 and 127, 1st Floor, The Forum, Plot
  No. G-20, Block 9, Clifton, Karachi and its total covered area is 5148 sq.ft.

Computer software / license  251,125

Note 2025

Rupees

8.1 Computer software / license
 Gross
    Cost
    Accumulated depreciation

 Net Book Value
    Opening
    Addition during the year
    Charge for the year

   Closing NBV

Amortisation rate % per annum

 1,334,298
 (1,083,173)

 251,125

 324,625
 -

 (73,500)
 251,125
 251,125

20%

8. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

 324,625

2024

 1,334,298
 (1,009,673)

 324,625

 -
 367,500
 (42,875)
 324,625
 324,625

20%

8.2 Amortisation amounting Rs. 0.073 million (2024: Rs. 0.043 million) are charged to administrative
and operating expenses.

169,884,000

2024

175,032,000Office Premises

Note 2025

Rupees

7. INVESTMENT PROPERTY
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9. NET INVESTMENT IN FINANCE LEASE

Secured
   Net investment in finance lease
   Current portion shown under current assets

 738,582,318
 (203,558,098)

 535,024,220

9.1

9.1 Net investment in finance lease

Minimum lease payments

Residual value of leased assets

Gross investment in finance lease

Unearned lease income

Allowance for potential lease losses

Net investment in finance lease

Rupees

2025

Total

615,338,452

319,062,929

934,401,381

(145,320,694)

789,080,687

(50,498,369)

738,582,318

Not later than
one year

296,044,664

45,297,982

341,342,646

(87,286,179)

254,056,467

(50,498,369)

203,558,098

Later than
one year and
less than five

years

319,293,788

273,764,947

593,058,735

(58,034,515)

535,042,220

-

535,024,220

9.2

9.6

9.3

Note

9.2 These represent interest free security deposits received against lease contracts and are
refundable / adjustable at the expiry / termination of the respective leases. Security deposits
ranging from 1% to 63% (2024: 1% to 63%) of the lease amount and are obtained at the
time of entering into the lease arrangement. The amount is net of security deposit held
against matured leases amounting to Rs. 435.726 million (2024: Rs. 518.7 million).
Furthermore, certain leases are secured in the form of mortgages / corporate / personal
guarantees of associated companies / directors.

Note 2025

Rupees

 1,181,683,172
 (408,293,631)

 773,389,541

2024

Minimum lease payments

Residual value of leased assets

Gross investment in finance lease

Unearned lease income

Allowance for potential lease losses

Net investment in finance lease

Rupees

2024

Total

1,022,437,585

482,711,070

1,505,148,655

(251,925,426)

1,253,223,229

(71,540,057)

1,181,683,172

Not later than
one year

478,607,101

139,912,877

618,519,978

 (138,686,290)

479,833,688

 (71,540,057)

408,293,631

Later than
one year and
less than five

years

543,830,484

342,798,193

886,628,677

 (113,239,136)

773,389,541

-

773,389,541

9.2

9.6

9.3

Note

Balance as at July 01
Transfer to lease recivable held under litigation
(Reversal) / Charge for the year - net
Balance as at June 30

9.3 Allowance for potential lease losses

 71,540,057
 (15,704,263)

 (5,337,425)
 50,498,369

Note 2025

Rupees

12.4
 113,154,212
 (43,598,720)

 1,984,565
 71,540,057

2024



11.3 As per the requirements of Regulation 14(4)(g) of the NBFC Regulations, the Company
is required to invest at least 15% of its outstanding funds raised through issue of Certificates
of Investments in Government Securities or instruments or investments as notified by the
Commission. As at June 30, 2025, the Company had 39.66% (2024: 15.76%) of its funds
raised through Certificates of Investments invested in Market Treasury Bills.
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9.4 The Company has entered into various lease agreements for periods ranging from one to
seven years.  The rate of return implicit in the leases ranges from 9.31% to 29.50% (2024:
9.31% to 29.50%)  per annum. Net investment in finance lease includes Rs. 72.616 million
(2024: Rs. 162.745 million) which has been placed under non-performing status.

9.5 Lease rentals received during the year aggregate to Rs. 314.125 million (2024: Rs. 548.268
million).

9.6 This includes accumulated suspended income as at June 30, 2025 amounting to Rs. 12.98
million (2024: Rs. 28.16 million)

10.1

10.2

Represents auto-finance loan provided to various customers. The mark-up on these loans ranging
from 12% to 27.11% (2024: 11.57% to 27.11%) per annum. These loans are repayable within a
period of 1 to 5 years and are secured against lien on the vehicles.

10.1

10.2 Allowance for potential loan losses

Balance as at July 01
Transfer to lease receivable held under litigation
Reversal for the year - net
Balance as at June 30

 2,137,902
 (171,244)

 (1,543,174)
 423,484

10. LONG-TERM LOANS
Secured

 67,519,605
 (19,628,185)

 (423,484)
 47,467,936

Auto-finance loan
Current portion shown under current assets
Allowance for potential loan losses

11. SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

At fair value through other comprehensive
   income - FVOCI
National Investment (Unit) Trust - opening
Remeasurement gain on revaluation
   at fair value

Amortised cost:
Government securities

 4,773,113

 2,411,863
 7,184,976

 42,126,586
 49,311,562

11.1

11.2 & 11.3

11.1 This represents investments in 54,300 units (2024: 54,300 units) at net asset value.

11.2 This represent investment in Market Treasury Bills having cost of Rs. 40 million (2024:
Rs. 34.70 million) and interest accrued thereon of Rs. 2.13 million (2024: Rs. 1.076 million).
The effective rate of return 11.50% (2024: 21.35%)  per annum. These will be matured
on July 10, 2025.

 2,152,492
-

 (14,590)
 2,137,902

 75,264,334
 (52,100,860)

 (2,137,902)
 21,025,572

 2,748,809

2,024,304
4,773,113

 35,776,724
 40,549,837

12.4

Note 2025

Rupees

2024
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Balance as at July 01
Transfer from net investment in finance lease
Transfer from long-term loans
Charge for the year - net
Balance as at June 30

9.3
10.2

12.4.1

12.4 Provision against lease  receivable held under
litigation

 87,953,657
 15,704,263

 171,244
 28,563,650

 132,392,814

12.4.1 The provision is net of forced sale value benefit amounting to Rs. 93.05 million (2024:
Rs. 88.25 million).

 43,561,174
 43,598,720

-
 793,763

 87,953,657

Balance as at July 01
Reversal for the year - net
Balance as at June 30

12.3.1 Provision against lease  receivable held under
diminishing musharakah receivable

 18,788,999
 (2,000,000)
 16,788,999

 18,788,999
 -

 18,788,999

Note 2025

Rupees

 16,794,504

 193,882,902
 3,046,701

 18,788,999
 215,718,602

 (87,953,657)
 (3,046,701)

 (17,679,245)

 (18,788,999)
 (127,468,602)

 105,044,504

2024

Considered good
   Insurance premium and other receivables
Considered doubtful
   Lease receivable held under litigation
   Insurance premium and other receivables
   Diminishing musharakah receivable

Provision
   Lease receivable held under litigation
   Insurance premium and other receivables
   Mark-up held in suspense account against
      lease receivable held under litigation

   Diminishing musharakah receivable

12. OTHER RECEIVABLES

9,173,316

 253,766,507
 3,046,701

 16,788,999
 273,602,207

 (132,392,814)
 (3,046,701)

 (28,323,692)

 (16,788,999)
 (180,552,206)

 102,223,317

12.1
12.2
12.3

12.4

12.3.1

12.1 These represents net investment in finance lease which is terminated by the Company
and are in litigations.

12.2 These include insurance premium receivable from lessees for leased assets insured on
their behalf by the Company. These amounts are recovered either during the lease period
or on termination / maturity of the lease contracts. However, full provision is provided
against these insurance balances.

12.3 The Company has filed litigation for claim of receivables due under the diminishing
musharakah arrangement from Muhandaseen (Pvt) Limited. However, as a matter of
prudence, full provision has been made against the receivables. During the year, the
Company recovered Rs. 2 million through court proceedings in relation to this claim. The
amount recovered has been recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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13.1 These carry mark-up rates ranging from 9.25% to 9.50% (2024: 20.50% to 21%) per annum.

Cash in hand
Balance with banks:
   - in current accounts
   - in saving accounts 13.1

13. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

 129,000

 7,282,554
 273,693,822
 281,105,376

14.1 As at June 30, 2025; 19,949,186 shares (2024: 20,715,479 shares) of the Company were held
by related parties.

14.2 All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to entitlement of dividend, voting rights, board
selection, right of final refusal and block voting.

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each50,000,00050,000,000

14. SHARE CAPITAL

500,000,000

2025 2024
Shares

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each
 fully paid in cash
Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
   issued as fully paid bonus shares
Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
   issued as fully paid Right shares

 10,000,000

 26,471,110

 13,000,000

49,471,110

 10,000,000

 26,471,110

 13,000,000

49,471,110

 100,000,000

264,711,100

 130,000,000
494,711,100

Authorised share capital

RESERVES

Capital reserve
    Statutory reserve
   Surplus on revaluation of property and
       equipment - net
    Surplus on revaluation of FVOCI
        investments

Revenue reserve
    Unappropriated profit

15.

15.1

15.2

 184,206,146

 90,504,204

 5,990,776
280,701,126

 15,549,574
 296,250,700

Note 2025

Rupees

Rupees
2025Note

Rupees
2025Note

 104,905

 6,798,778
 347,952,804
 354,856,487

500,000,000

 100,000,000

264,711,100

 130,000,000
494,711,100

 169,485,284

 90,504,204

 3,578,913
263,568,401

 152,077,011
 415,645,412

2024

2024

2024
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15.1 In accordance with the requirements of NBFC Regulations no 16, an amount of not less
than 20 percent of after tax profits shall be transferred to statutory reserve till such time
when the reserve equals the amount of paid-up capital, and thereafter a sum of not less
than 5 percent shall be transferred. Consequently, during the current year the Company
has transferred 20 percent of after tax profits amouting to Rs. 14.721 million (2024:
Rs. 15.760 million) to its statutory reserve.

15.2 Represents surplus on revaluation in respect of office premises at The Forum Mall, Karachi
as disclosed in note 7.1. The said property was transferred from property and equipment
to investment property in year June 30, 2017.

Note 2025

Rupees

Long-term deposits
Current portion shown under current liabilities

16. LONG-TERM DEPOSITS

319,062,929
(45,297,982)
273,764,947

4,166,666
(4,166,666)

-

9.1

Secured
    Long-term loan
    Current portion shown under current liabilities

17. LONG TERM LOANS

17.1

The Company has arranged long term finance facilities from a commercial bank amounting to
Rs. 350 million (2024: Rs. 350 million) for a tenure of three years which is repayable in equal
quarterly installments. These facilities carries mark-up at the rate of 3 month KIBOR plus 1%
per annum (2024: 3 month KIBOR plus 1% per annum) and are secured by hypothecation charge
over specific leased assets and lease rentals receivable.

17.1

Opening balance
Lease liability recognised
Payments made during the year
Finance cost incurred during the year
Closing balance
Current portion shown under current liabilities

18. LEASE LIABILITIES

 14,977,323
 -

 (6,188,709)
 3,288,221

 12,076,835
 (5,041,318)

 7,035,517

18.3

18.1 These liabilities are computed at incremental borrowing rate of 24.27% (1 year KIBOR
plus 1%) of the Company and over a term of 5 years.

18.2 The future minimum lease payments to which the Company is committed under the
agreement will be due as follows:

2024

 482,711,070
 (139,912,877)

 342,798,193

 37,500,000
 (33,333,332)

 4,166,668

 636,978
 21,616,347

 (10,664,909)
 3,388,907

 14,977,323
 (6,315,124)

 8,662,199
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Taxable temporary difference arising in respect of:
    Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment
    Unrealised gain on revaluation of investment property
    Accelerated tax depreciation
    Net investment in finance lease
    Right-of-use assets

Deductible temporary difference arising in respect of:
    Provision against potential lease losses
    Provision against diminishing musharakah receivable
    Provision against other receivables
    Lease liabilities
    Accelerated tax depreciation
    Provision for leave encashment

20. DEFERRED TAXATION - Net

 36,966,506
 11,943,360

 -
 133,958,226

 3,597,838
 186,465,930

(14,644,527)
 (4,868,810)

 (39,277,459)
 (3,502,282)

 (219,336)
 (341,586)

 (62,854,000)
 123,611,930

Unsecured
    Certificates of investment
    Current portion shown under current liabilies

19. CERTIFICATES OF INVESTMENT

 106,208,382
 (99,208,382)

 7,000,000

19.1

19.1 These represent certificates of investment issued by the Company for periods ranging from 12
to 36 (2024: 12 to 36) months and carry mark-up rates ranging from 11.15% to 21.75% (2024:
14.75% to 21.75%) per annum.

18.3 Amount recognised in the statement of profit or loss

Interest expense on lease liabilities  3,288,22129

Note 2025

Rupees

Upto one
year

Total

Rupees

From one year
to five years

2025

Upto one
year

Total

Rupees

From one year
to five years

2024

Minimum lease payments
Finance cost allocated to future periods
Present value of minimum lease payment

Minimum lease payments
Finance cost allocated to future periods
Present value of minimum lease payment

15,831,152
(3,754,317)
12,076,835

22,066,014
(7,088,691)
14,977,323

7,376,592
(2,335,274)

5,041,318

6,315,124
(2,881,468)

3,433,656

8,454,560
(1,419,043)

7,035,517

15,750,890
(4,207,223)
11,543,667

 36,966,506
 10,450,440
 1,208,708

 124,692,928
 4,976,627

 178,295,210

 (20,746,617)
 (5,448,810)

 (26,390,104)
 (4,343,424)

-
 (341,586)

 (57,270,541)
 121,024,669

 227,077,146
 (1,602,139)

 225,475,007

 3,388,907

2024
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Surplus on revaluation of 
   Property and equipment
Unrealised gain on revaluation of 
   Investment property
Accelerated tax depreciation
Net investment in finance lease
Right of use assets
Lease liabilities
Provision against potential lease losses
Provision against diminishing musharakah receivable
Provision against other receivables
Provision for leave encashment

20.1 Movement in temporary differences is as follows:
Balance

as at
July 1, 2024

Balance
as at

June 30, 2025

Rupees

Recognised
in statement of
profit or loss

 36,966,506

 11,943,360
 (219,336)

 133,958,226
 3,597,838

 (3,502,282)
 (14,644,527)

 (4,868,810)
 (39,277,459)

 (341,586)
 123,611,930

 -

 1,492,920
 (1,428,044)

 9,265,297
 (1,378,789)

 841,142
 6,102,090

 580,000
 (12,887,354)

 -
 2,587,262

 36,966,506

 10,450,440
 1,208,708

 124,692,929
 4,976,627

 (4,343,424)
 (20,746,617)

 (5,448,810)
 (26,390,105)

 (341,586)
 121,024,668

 2,173,322
 41,211,188
 2,393,820
 9,342,946

55,121,276

2024

Accrued liabilities
Sundry creditors - lease
Security deposit
Other liabilities

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

 1,580,201
 25,000,201

 2,393,820
 5,976,446

34,950,668

Note 2025

Rupees

22. TAXATION - NET

Balance as at July 01
Current for the year (Current and Prior)
Taxes paid
Balance as at June 30

 37,977,148
 28,814,665

 (82,883,465)
 (16,091,652)

 50,496,149
 43,135

 50,539,284

 30
 33,603,085
 61,291,408

 (56,917,345)
 37,977,148

Certificates of investment
Long-term loan

23. ACCRUED MARK-UP

 59,744,820
794,187

 60,539,007

19.1

24. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
24.1 Contingencies

24.1.1 Alternate Corporate Tax charge (ACT) for the tax years 2014 through 2025 amounting  Rs. 155.475
million, which is Rs. 75.746 million  (2024: Rs. 64.783 million) lower than corporate tax (minimum tax
or normal tax whichever is higher) payable under the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.



The Company had filed a Civil Suit against the levy and payment of ACT on its accounting income
in the Honorable High Court of Sindh. The Court on December 29, 2014 had issued an order restraining
the Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) from taking any coercive action against the Company. Later on,
on the basis of directions given by  the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan vide its order dated
June 27, 2018 in another case to the effect that civil suits shall only be entertained by the High Courts
if 50% of the tax calculated by the tax authorities is deposited upfront by the filers of the civil suit,
Management was advised by its legal advisor to withdraw the civil suit and to file a constitution petition
instead as and when a notice for the recovery of the tax demand is received from the FBR. 

Accepting the legal advice of the legal advisor, the Company has withdrawn the civil suit and is waiting
to be served recovery notice by the FBR. As soon as the notice is received the management will file
a Constitutional Petition in the Court. Since, in view of the legal advice, the management is confident
that it will get the desired relief from the Court, no provisioning for the disputed tax demand has been
made in these financial statements.

24.1.2 On June 15, 2016,  Order-in-original  No.551 of 2016 was passed by the Assistant Commissioner of
Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) under section 23, 43(2)(3)(6d) of the Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act,
2011(the Act) whereby sales tax demand of Rs. 3.195 million was created against the Company for
tax years 2012 to 2015. This demand included sum of Rs. 2.353 million being sales tax charged on
income from gross Ijarah operations. An appeal was filed against the said Order before the Commissioner
(Appeals) of the SRB by the Company under section 57 of the Act which was not allowed by the
Commissioner (Appeals) vide his Order-in-Appeal No. 20 of 2017 dated March 01, 2017. An appeal
against the order of Assistant Commissioner of SRB and Order-in-Appeal of Commissioner (Appeals)
was also filed by the Company in the Appellate Tribunal (AT) of SRB under section 61 of the Act which
has also been dismissed by the AT of SRB vide its Order in Appeal No. AT-18/2017 dated April 30,
2020 on the ground that Ijarah transactions being undertaken by the Company are similar to an
operating lease arrangement in which sales tax is chargeable on gross Ijarah rental amount.

The Company has filed a reference against the order of the AT of SRB in the Court and on June 10,
2019 has been granted a stay against the recovery of the disputed tax demand by the SRB. The
Management, based on legal advice, is confident that the outcome of the appeal will be in the
Company's favor. Accordingly, no provision has been made in respect of the matter.

24.2 Commitments

There were no commitments at the reporting date.
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Finance income 
Gain on lease termination 
Late payment charges 
Processing fee 
Documentation charges

25. INCOME FROM FINANCING OPERATIONS

 137,069,806
 2,242,225
 5,219,872

 690,250
 -

 145,222,153

 123,145,636
 13,924,170

 137,069,806

Note 2025

Rupees

2024

 201,871,696
 3,662,328

 12,635,573
 562,345

 1,210
 218,733,152

 178,626,713
 23,244,983

 201,871,696

Net investment in finance lease
Auto-finance loan

25.1 Finance income

25.1
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28.1 Salaries and benefits include Rs. 0.673 million (2024: Rs. 0.720 million) in respect of staff
provident fund.

28.2 The Company has sufficient insurance coverage from an insurance company rated minimum
A- by a credit rating agency registered with the Commission against any losses that may be
incurred as a result of employee’s fraud or gross negligence.

Profit on bank accounts
Interest on Government Securities
Dividend income on NIT units

OTHER INCOME

Gain on disposal of fixed assets
Rental income on investment property
Unrealised gain on investment property
Others

ADMINISTRATIVE AND
OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries, allowances and benefits
Depreciation on property and equipment
Depreciation on right-of-use assets
Amortisation
Legal and professional charges
Postage, subscription, printing and stationary
Vehicle running and maintenance
Office utilities
Insurance expenses
Office repair and general maintenance
Workers' Welfare Fund
Auditors' remuneration
Advertisement expenses
Travelling and conveyance expenses
Other expenses

 49,521,458
 6,121,404

 207,969
 55,850,831

 937,884
 15,304,254

 5,148,000
 1,150

 21,391,288

 35,404,545
 1,073,437
 4,754,446

 73,500
 1,396,389

 832,489
 2,377,316
 3,112,891
 3,090,249
 1,234,982
 2,145,000

 693,000
 523,800

 51,533
 1,639,045

 58,402,622

26. RETURN ON INVESTMENTS

27.

28.1
5
6

8.1

28.2

28.3

28.

Note 2025

Rupees

 32,553,449
 10,856,280

 257,926
 43,667,655

 -
13,806,756
 5,148,000

 -
 18,954,756

 34,159,871
 937,231

 4,603,127
 42,875

 1,788,939
 1,204,391
 2,471,060
 2,990,709
 2,959,485

 939,807
 2,858,953

 633,750
 361,800
 46,190

 1,650,625
 57,648,813

2024

 402,000

 60,000
 138,000

 33,750
 633,750

2024

Audit fee
Review report on the statement of compliance
   with the Code of Corporate Governance
Half yearly review fee
Out of pocket expenses

28.3 Auditor’s remuneration

 442,200

 66,000
 151,800

 33,000
 693,000

Note 2025

Rupees
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 335
 32,773,615

 3,244,308
 3,288,221

 65,883
 39,372,362

 23,663,970
 2,587,262
 5,150,695

 31,401,927

Note 2025

Rupees

 1,084,583
 57,080,642
 15,894,215
 3,388,907

 92,743
 77,541,090

 60,397,420
 2,857,738

 893,988
 64,149,146

2024
FINANCE COST
Mark-up/Interest on:
   Short term borrowings
   Certificate of investment - net
   Long-term loan
   Lease liabilities
   Bank charges

29.

30. TAXATION

Current
Deferred
Prior

 20.1

 30.1

30.1

Accounting profit before taxation

Tax at current rate
Tax effect of income subject to FTR
Tax effect of rebates / credits
Others

Effective tax rate reconciliation

29%
0.0%

-0.8%
1.7%

29.9%

105,006,237

30,451,809
29,116

(887,647)
1,808,649

31,401,927

RupeesEffective
tax rate

%

2025

RupeesEffective
tax rate

%

2024

29%
0.0%

-0.5%
16.4%
44.9%

142,947,672

41,454,825
36,110

(800,792)
23,459,003
64,149,146

2025

Rupees

Note

EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

Profit after taxation attributable to
    ordinary shareholders

Weighted average number of
    outstanding ordinary shares

Earning per share - basic and diluted

There were no convertible dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue as at June 30, 2025.

73,604,310

49,471,110

1.49

31.1

31.

--------Rupees--------

--------Number of shares--------

281,105,376
281,105,376

32. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances 13

2024

78,798,526

49,471,110

1.59

 354,856,487
354,856,487



34. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH CONNECTED PERSONS AND RELATED PARTIES

The Company has related party relationships with the companies with common directorship, directors of the
Company, key management personnel and employee's contribution plan.

Contributions to the provident fund are made in accordance with the terms of employment. Salaries and
allowances of the key management personal are in accordance with the terms of employment. 

The Company in the normal course of business carries out transactions with various related parties / connected
persons. These transactions are carried out at the mutually agreed terms as approved by the board of
directors of the Company and donot involve more than a normal risk. Transactions and balances with the
related parties / connected persons, other than those which has been disclosed elsewhere are as follows:
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Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities.

Balance as at July 1, 2024
Issued and rolled forward
  during the year
Payments made during the year

Other changes
Finance cost

Balance as at June 30, 2025

37,500,000
-

(33,333,334)
(33,333,334)

-
-

4,166,666

227,077,146
-

(120,868,764)
(120,868,764)

-
-

106,208,382

14,977,323
-

(6,188,709)
(6,188,709)

3,288,221
3,288,221

12,076,835

282,789,526
195,410,885

(354,289,103)
(158,878,218)

3,288,221
3,288,221

127,199,529

Certificates
of

investment

Long-
term
loan

Liabilities

TotalLease
Payments

3,235,057
195,410,885

(193,898,296)
1,512,589

-
-

4,747,646

Unclaimed
dividend

32.1

33. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

Managerial
   remuneration
Housing and utilities
   and other allowances
Reimbursable expenses
Provident Fund contribution
Directors’ meeting fees

Number of persons

Rupees

2025

 1,635,096

1,849,704
 172,473

 -
 -

 3,657,273

1

Chief
Executive

Officer

 -

 -
 -
 -

1,850,000
1,850,000

9

Non
Executive
Directors

7,209,360

6,396,384
 760,095
 322,044

 -
 14,687,883

4

Executives

2024

Chief
Executive

Officer

Non
Executive
Directors

Executives

1,635,096

1,348,104
 234,437

 -
 -

 3,217,637

1

 -

 -
 -
 -

920,000
920,000

9

5,416,278

4,050,945
 1,279,161

 303,030
 -

 11,049,414

4

33.1 Certain executives of the Company are also entitled to free use of Company owned
and maintained vehicles.



34.3 Following are the related parties with whom the Company had entered in to transactions or has
arrangement / agreement in place.

Name Basis of Relation % of shareholding in
      the company

Unibro Industries Limited Associated company (Common Directorship)   5.91
Mid-East Agencies (Pvt) Limited Associated company (Common Directorship)    5.07
Staff retirement benefit fund Provident fund   Nil
Hina Sheraz Close family member of Director   Nil
Yasmeen Pervez Spouse of director   Nil
Pervez Inam Director of the Company  15.68
Mubeena Sohail Close family member of Chairman   Nil
Mehreen Luqman Close family member of Director   Nil
Nida Farhan Close family member of Chairman   Nil
Mohammad Ali Pervez Close family member of Director  14.26
Sohail Inam Ellahi Chairman of the Board of Directors    9.78
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Board of Directors
and their relatives
Associated Company
(Common Directorship)
Associated Company
(Common Directorship)

Provident fund

Board of Directors
and their relatives
Board of Directors
and their relatives

Dividend
  Dividend Paid during the year
  Board Members

  Unibro Industries Limited

  Mid-East Agencies (Pvt) Limited

Staff retirement benefit fund
  Contribution for the year

Year ended balances

Certificates of investment
(COI)
Accrued mark-up

 116,082,027

 11,556,041

 9,913,070

 673,368

 105,449,887

 50,259,142

Certificates of investment
  Rolled over during the year

  Repaid during the year

  Finance cost

Office rent
  Rent paid during the year
  Unibro House

 -

119,291,125

 32,511,202

 5,699,490

Nature of relationship

Board of Directors and
their relatives
Board of Directors and
their relatives
Board of Directors and
their relatives

Associated undertaking
(Common Directorship)

2025

Rupees

Nature of transaction

7,000,000

115,555,001

56,718,394

5,378,987

2024

  -

 -

 -

 720,263

 224,741,012

59,382,874

34.1 Transactions during the year

34.2
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35. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

100 696,734Mutual funds

Rupees % Rupees %

1,080,922 100

2025 2024

The management, based on the un-audited financial statements of the Fund, is of the view that
the investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of
Section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and Rules formulated for this purpose.

 3,580,620
 4,747,646

 50,539,284
 -

 106,208,382
 4,166,666

 12,076,835
 181,319,433

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
Unclaimed dividend
Accrued mark-up
Short term borrowings
Certificate of investment
Long-term loan
Lease liabilities

Amortised
Cost

FVTPL FVTOCI Total

 3,580,620
 4,747,646

 50,539,284
 -

 106,208,382
 4,166,666

 12,076,835
 181,319,433

 -
 -
 -
 -
 -
 -
 -
 -

Rupees
 -
 -
 -
 -
 -
 -
 -
 -

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

 281,105,376
 49,311,562

 101,914,317
 37,934

 419,519,389

 67,096,121
 118,500

 919,103,199

 -
 7,184,976

 -
 -

 -
 -
 -

 7,184,976

Financial assets
Cash and bank balances
Short term investments
Other receivables
Advance to employees
Net investment in finance lease
    (net of security deposit)
Long-term loans
Long-term security deposits

Amortised
Cost

FVTPL FVTOCI Total

 281,105,376
 42,126,586

 101,914,317
 37,934

 419,519,389

 67,096,121
 118,500

 911,918,223

 -
 -
 -
 -

 -
 -
 -
 -

Rupees

June 30, 2025
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company is exposed to the following risks:

37.1 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates, equity prices,
foreign exchange rates and credit spreads (not relating to changes in the obligor’s/issuer’s
credit standing) will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. The Company manages the market risk by monitoring exposure on marketable
securities by following internal risk management policies and regulations laid down by
SECP. As of June 30, 2025, the Company is mainly exposed to interest rate risk only.

37.1.1 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to risk of changes
in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's fixed and floating rates financial assets
and financial liabilities, Fixed rates financial assets as at June 30, 2025 aggregate to Rs. 315.82
million (2024: Rs. 383.73 million) and financial liabilities Rs. 106.208 million (2024: Rs. 227.077
million). 

Floating rates financial assets as at June 30, 2025 aggregate to Rs. 804.65 million (2024:
Rs. 1,255 million) million and financial liabilities Rs. 16.67 million (2024: Rs. 52.477 million). The
maturity analysis and risk rate profile of the Company's significant interest bearing financial
instruments are as follows:

 2,509,102
 3,235,057

 60,539,007
 -

 227,077,146
 37,500,000
 14,977,323

 345,837,635

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
Unclaimed dividend
Accrued mark-up
Short term borrowings
Certificate of investment
Long-term loan
Lease liabilities

Amortised
Cost

FVTPL FVTOCI Total

 2,509,102
 3,235,057

 60,539,007
 -

 227,077,146
 37,500,000
 14,977,323

 345,837,635

 -
 -
 -
 -
 -
 -
 -
 -

Rupees
 -
 -
 -
 -
 -
 -
 -
 -

 354,856,487
 40,549,837

 104,735,504
 4,940

 698,972,102

 73,126,432
 118,500

 1,272,363,802

 -
 4,773,113

 -
 -

 -
 -
 -

 4,773,113

Financial assets
Cash and bank balances
Short term investments
Other receivables
Advance to employees
Net investment in finance lease
    (net of security deposit)
Long-term loans
Long-term security deposits

Amortised
Cost

FVTPL FVTOCI Total

 354,856,487
 35,776,724

 104,735,504
 4,940

 698,972,102

 73,126,432
 118,500

 1,267,590,689

 -
 -
 -
 -

 -
 -
 -
 -

Rupees

June 30, 2024
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Financial assets

Cash and bank balances
Short term investments
Other receivables
Advance to employees
Net investment in finance lease
    (net of security deposit)
Long-term loans
Long-term deposits

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
Unclaimed dividend
Accrued mark-up
Certificates of investment
Short term borrowings
Lease Liabilities
Long-term loan

On balance sheet gap

Effective
mark-up/
interest/

profit rate

RupeesPercent
(%)

Total

20.5 - 21.00
21.35

-
-

9.31  - 39.50
11.57 - 27.11

-

 -
 -
 -

14.75 - 21.75
22.99 - 24.49

24.27
22.09 - 22.38

 354,751,582
40,549,837

104,735,504
4,940

698,972,102
73,126,432

118,500
1,272,258,897

2,509,102
3,235,057

60,539,007
227,077,145

-
14,977,323
37,500,000

345,837,635

926,421,262

347,952,804
35,776,724

  -
  -

74,194,313
15,357,006

  -
473,280,847

  -
  -
  -
416,750
-

1,578,781
12,500,001
14,495,532

458,785,315

  -
  -
  -
  -

194,186,441
36,743,854

  -
230,930,295

  -
  -
  -

 1,185,389
  -

4,736,343
20,833,331
26,755,063

204,175,232

 -
 -
 -
 -

 -
 -

 -

 -
 -

 -
 -
 -
 -
 -

 -

Over five
years

2024

Upto three
months

More than
three months and

upto
one year

More than
one year and

upto
five years

Exposed to mark-up / interest / profit rate risk

6,798,778
 4,773,113

104,735,504
4,940

  -
  -

 118,500
116,430,835

2,509,102
3,235,057

60,539,007
  -
  -
  -
  -

66,283,166

50,147,669

Not exposed
to mark-up/

interest /
profit rate

risk

  -
  -
  -
  -

 430,591,348
21,025,572

  -
451,616,920

  -
  -
  -

225,475,007
  -

8,662,199
4,166,668

238,303,046

213,313,046

Financial assets

Cash and bank balances
Short term investments
Other receivables
Advance to employees
Net investment in finance lease
    (net of security deposit)
Long-term loans
Long-term deposits

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
Unclaimed dividend
Accrued mark-up
Certificates of investment
Short term borrowings
Lease Liabilities
Long-term loan

On balance sheet gap

Effective
mark-up/
interest/

profit rate

RupeesPercent
(%)

Total

9.25-9.50
11.50

-
-

9.31  - 29.50
12 - 27.11

-

 -
 -
 -

11.15 - 21.75
13.14 - 21.24

24.27
12.93 - 22.38

280,976,376
49,311,562

101,914,317
37,934

419,519,389
67,096,121

118,500
918,974,199

3,580,620
4,747,646

50,539,284
106,208,382

-
12,076,835

4,166,666
181,319,433

737,654,766

273,693,822
42,126,586

-
-

49,846,432
7,397,742

-
373,064,582

-
-
-

436,000
-

1,260,329
4,166,666
5,862,995

367,201,587

  -
  -
  -
  -

108,416,684
12,230,443

  -
120,644,127

  -
  -
  -

98,772,382
  -

3,780,989
-

102,553,371

18,090,756

 -
 -
 -
 -

 -
 -

 -

 -
 -

 -
 -
 -
 -
 -

 -

Over five
years

2025

Upto three
months

More than
three months and

upto
one year

More than
one year and

upto
five years

Exposed to mark-up / interest / profit rate risk

7,282,554
7,184,976

101,914,317
37,934

  -
  -

 118,500
116,538,281

3.580.620
4,747,646

50,539,284
  -
  -
  -
  -

58,867,550

57,670,731

Not exposed
to mark-up/

interest /
profit rate

risk

  -
  -
  -
  -

261,259,273
47,467,936

  -
308,727,209

 -
  -
  -

7,000,000
  -

7,035,517
-

14,035,517

294,691,692
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a)   Sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

In case of increase / decrease in KIBOR by 100 basis points on the last pricing date with
all other variables held constant, the profit before tax for the year ended June 30, 2025
would have been lower/higher by Rs. 7.88 million (2024: Rs. 12.02 million).

37.2 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation
or commitment that it has entered into with the Company, resulting in a financial loss to the
Company. The risk is generally limited to principal amounts and accrued interest thereon, if any,
and arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers and balances with the
banks. The Company attempts to control credit risk by monitoring credit exposures, limiting
transactions with specific counter parties, and continually assessing the credit worthiness of
counter parties.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is:

2025

Rupees

Aging analysis of net investment in finance lease.

Cash and bank balances
Other receivables
Investments
Advance to employees
Net investment in  finance lease less residual value
Long-term loans
Long-term security deposits

 281,105,376
 102,223,317

 7,184,976
 37,934

 419,519,389
 67,096,121

 118,500
 877,285,613

9.1 & 10.2

754,353,013

15,799,329
86,447,950

856,600,292
(50,921,853)
805,678,439

Neither over due not impaired
Past due
less than 90 days
more than 90 days
Gross carrying amount
Less: provision for potential losses
Net Carrying amount

TotalLong-Term
Loans

Rupees

67,519,605

-
-

67,519,605
(423,484)

67,096,121

686,833,408

15,799,329
86,447,950

789,080,687
(50,498,369)
738,582,318

Net Investment
in Finance Lease

2025
Note

2024

 354,856,487
 105,044,504

 4,773,113
 4,940

 698,972,102
 73,126,432

 118,500
 1,236,896,078
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Impairment is recognised by the Company in accordance with the Expected Credit Loss
as per IFRS 09.

The analysis below summarises the credit rating quality of Company's banks balances as
at June 30, 2025:

37.2.1 Concentration of credit risk - gross investment in finance lease

The Company seeks to manage its credit risk through diversification of financing activities to
avoid undue concentration of credit risk with individuals or groups of customers in specific locations
or business sectors. 

The management of the Company follows two sets of guidelines. Internally, it has its own operating
policy duly approved by the Board of Directors whereas externally it adheres to the regulations
issued by the SECP. The operating policy defines the extent of exposures with reference to a
particular sector or group of leases. 

Ratings

AAA
AA+
AA
AA-
A+
A-
B

99.57%
0.05%
0.04%
0.06%
0.16%
0.12%
0.00%

100.00%

2025

99.70%
0.04%
0.05%
0.07%
0.13%
0.00%
0.01%

100.00%

2024

9.1 & 10.2

1,093,980,894

41,739,070
192,767,599

1,328,487,563
 (73,677,959)

1,254,809,604

Neither over due not impaired
Past due
less than 90 days
more than 90 days
Gross carrying amount
Less: provision for potential losses
Net Carrying amount

TotalLong-Term
Loans

Rupees

53,633,089

9,683,594
11,947,651
75,264,334

 (2,137,902)
73,126,432

 1,040,347,805

32,055,476
180,819,948

1,253,223,229
 (71,540,057)

1,181,683,172

Net Investment
in Finance Lease

2024



Energy, oil and gas
Steel, engineering and
   auto
Electrical goods
Transport and
   communication
Chemical, fertilizer and
   pharmaceuticals
Textile
Food, tobacco and
   beverage
Hotels
Construction
Health care
Advertisement & Publications
Services
Packaging
Others
Inidividuals

Rupees Percentage Rupees Percentage

 42,511,989

 37,468,564
 114,447,729

 5,425,500

54,612,577
 5,066,750

 1,492,350
 84,023,855

 2,020,000
 195,215,140

 13,617,222
 23,586,639

 38,900
 338,588,647
 452,031,919

 1,370,147,781

3.10%

2.73%
8.35%

0.40%

3.99%
0.37%

0.11%
6.13%
0.15%

14.25%
0.99%
1.72%
0.00%

24.71%
33.00%

100.00%

2025 2024
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 42,511,988

 66,457,978
 127,521,021

 7,042,468

 58,954,130
 5,036,500

 148,215,353
 112,936,703
 26,529,089

 265,741,420
 25,419,747
 31,457,615

 26,750
 553,249,820
 552,951,874

 2,024,052,456

2.10%

3.28%
6.30%

0.35%

2.91%
0.25%

7.32%
5.58%
1.31%

13.13%
1.26%
1.55%
0.00%

27.33%
27.32%

100.00%

37.2.2 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations
as they fall due. Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Company could be required
to pay its liabilities earlier than expected or difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments
associated with financial liabilities as they fall due.

The Company manages liquidity risk by following the internal guidelines of the management such
as monitoring maturities of financial liabilities, continuously monitoring its liquidity position and
ensuring availability of the funds by maintaining flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit
lines available, under both normal and stress conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses
or risking damage to the Company's reputation.

Maturity analysis for financial liabilities

Total

Rupees

Contractual
cash flow Over five

years

2025

Upto three
months

More than
three months and

upto
one year

More than
one year and

upto
five years

  Trade and other payable
   Unclaimed dividend
   Accrued mark-up
   Certificates of investment
   Lease Liabilites
   Long-term loan

 3,580,620
4,747,646

50,539,284
106,208,382

12,076,835
4,166,666

181,319,433

 3,580,620
4,747,646

218,596
436,000

12,260,329
4,166,666

14,406,857

 -
 -

50,320,688
98,772,382

3,780,989
-

152,874,059

 -
 -
 -

7,000,000
7,035,517

-
14,035,517

 -
 -
-
-
-
-

 3,580,620
4,747,646

50,539,284
106,208,382

12,076,835
4,166,666

181,319,433
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38. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled,
between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. The carrying values
of the financial assets and financial liabilities approximate their fair values except for
investments held to maturity. 

The Company's accounting policy on fair value measurements is discussed in note 4.

The Company measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects
the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements:

Level 1:  Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2:  Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3:  Fair value measurements using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (i.e. unobservable inputs).

Rupees

June 30, 2025
Fair value

TotalLevel 1

 -

 -

Level 2

7,184,976

175,032,000

On-balance sheet financial  instruments
Financial assets measured at fair value
  through other comprehensive income
     Short term investment

Non financial assets
     Investment property

11

7

Note

7,184,976

175,032,000

Total

Rupees

Contractual
cash flow Over five

years

2024

Upto three
months

More than
three months and

upto
one year

More than
one year and

upto
five years

  Trade and other payable
   Unclaimed dividend
   Accrued mark-up
   Certificates of investment
   Lease Liabilites
   Long-term loan

 2,509,102
3,235,057

60,539,007
227,007,146

14,977,323
37,500,000

345,837,634

 2,509,102
3,235,057

60,539,007
227,077,146

14,977,323
37,500,000

345,837,634

 2,509,102
3,235,057

794,187
416,750

1,578,781
12,500,001
21,033,878

 -
 -

 59,744,820
1,185,389
4,736,343

20,833,331
86,499,883

 -
 -
 -

225,475,007
8,662,199
4,166,668

238,303,874

 -
 -
-
-
-
-
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Transfer between levels of the fair value hierarchy are recognised at the end of the reporting
year during which the changes have occurred. However, there were no transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy during the year.

39. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's prime objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide adequate returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce its cost of capital.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio (total liabilities/total equity). The Company finances its operations through
equity, borrowings and management of its working capital with a view to maintaining an
appropriate mix between various sources of finance to minimise liquidity risk. Taken as
a whole, the Company's risk arising from financial instruments is limited as there is no
significant exposure to price and cash flow risk in respect of such instruments.

Rupees

June 30, 2024
Fair value

TotalLevel 1

 -

 -

Level 2

4,773,113

169,884,000

On-balance sheet financial  instruments
Financial assets measured at fair value
  through other comprehensive income
     Short term investment

Non financial assets
     Investment property

11

7

Note

4,773,113

169,884,000

40. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company has two primary reporting segments namely, "Lease finance" and "Auto-finance".
Other operations, which are not deemed by management to be sufficiently significant to disclose
as separate items and do not fall into the above segment categories, are reported under “Others”.

Total debt
Total equity
Total capital employed

Gearing ratio

122,451,883
790,961,800
913,413,683

13.41%

2025
Rupees

279,554,469
910,356,512

1,189,910,981

23.49%

2024
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281,355,563
38,762,998

242,592,565
(2,858,953)

(3,217,988))

(16,026,862)
220,488,762
(77,541,090)
(64,149,146)

78,798,526

1,935,401,531
15,117,677

1,950,519,208
541,293,401
498,869,295

1,040,162,696
-

4,603,127
5,965,413

937,231
42,875

79,483,867
14,253,402
65,230,465

578,129,886

17,371,143

 -
4,603,127

Segment revenue
Administrative and operating expenses
Segment result
Provision for Workers’ Welfare Fund
Reversal / (provision) for doubtful debts
  & litigation receivable
Unallocated expenses
Result from operating activities
Finance cost
Provision for taxation
Profit for the year
Other Information
Segment assets
Unallocated assets
Total assets
Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities
Total liabilities
Capital expenditure
Depreciation
Unallocated Capital expenditure
Unallocated Depreciation
Unallocated amortisation

Lease
finance

Auto
finance

Others Total

178,626,713
21,687,382

156,939,331

1,284,145,215

523,922,258

-
-

23,244,983
2,822,214

20,422,769

73,126,432

-

-
-

Rupees

2024

85,394,466
18,344,728
67,049,738

512,003,755

14,470,655

 -
4,754,446

Segment revenue
Administrative and operating expenses
Segment result
Provision for Workers’ Welfare Fund
Reversal / (provision) for doubtful debts
  & litigation receivable
Unallocated expenses
Result from operating activities
Finance cost
Provision for taxation
Profit for the year
Other Information
Segment assets
Unallocated assets
Total assets
Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities
Total liabilities
Capital expenditure
Depreciation
Unallocated Capital expenditure
Unallocated Depreciation
Unallocated amortisation

Lease
finance

Auto
finance

Others Total

123,145,636
19,598,272

103,547,364

839,245,601

344,063,130

-
-

13,924,170
2,215,991

11,708,179

67,096,121

-

-
-

Rupees

2025

222,464,272
40,158,991

182,305,281
(2,145,000)

(19,683,051)

(16,098,631)
144,378,599
(39,372,362)
(31,401,927)

73,604,310

1,418,345,477
27,980,663

1,446,326,140
358,533,785
296,830,555
655,364,340

-
4,754,446

369,025
1,073,437

73,500
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41. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Total number of employees at as June 30, 2025 is 24 (2024: 25) and the average number
of employees during the year were 24 (2024: 27).

42. CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Certain corresponding figures have been reclassified, rearranged or additionally incorporated
in this financial statements for the purpose of comparison and better presentation. There
were no significant reclassifications / restatements to corresponding figures during the
year.

43. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorised for issue on September 25, 2025 by the Board
of Directors of the Company. 

44. GENERAL

Figures have been rounded off to nearest Pak Rupee, unless otherwise stated.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial OfficerDirector
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDERS
AS AT JUNE 30, 2025

No. of
Share Holders From To

Shares
Held

Percentage
%

Having Shares

211
82
52
82
14

8
5
2
7
1
3
2
1
1
1
1
3
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
2
1

497

100
500

1000
5000

10000
15000
20000
25000
30000
40000
50000
55000
60000
65000
85000

100000
115000
120000
130000
185000
200000
230000
390000
575000
670000
975000

1370000
1560000
1590000
1910000
2435000
2510000
2925000
3345000
4840000
7055000
7710000

1
101
501

1001
5001

10001
15001
20001
25001
35001
45001
50001
55001
60001
80001
95001

110001
115001
125001
180001
195001
225001
385001
570001
665001
970001

1365001
1555001
1585001
1905001
2430001
2505001
2920001
3340001
4835001
7050001
7705001

Company Total

5471
26186
45334

205163
101349
103711
84336
45511

184092
38157

147381
100276
55500
61448
83000
97402

332934
116522
129759
183456
199900
227734
389805
572560
669865
975000

1370000
1559803
1587075
1909596
2430006
2509638
2924580
3344534
4838316

14106592
7709118

49,471,110

0.01
0.05
0.09
0.42
0.21
0.21
0.17
0.09
0.37
0.08
0.30
0.20
0.11
0.12
0.17
0.20
0.67
0.24
0.26
0.37
0.40
0.46
0.79
1.16
1.35
1.97
2.77
3.15
3.21
3.86
4.91
5.07
5.91
6.76
9.78

28.52
15.59

100



Holding 5% or more

Mr. Pervez Inam
Mr. Muhammad Ali Pervez
Mr. Hassan Sohail
Mr. Sohail Inam Ellahi
Mr. Javed Inam Ellahie
Unibro Industries Ltd
Mr. Fawad S. Malik
Mid East Agencies (Pvt.) Ltd

Total

Associated
companies, undertaking and
related parties
Unibro Industries Ltd
Mid East Agencies (Pvt) Ltd
Total

Public Sector Companies

Banks, DFIs, NBFCs, Insurance
Companies, Modaraba and Mutual
Funds
Bank of Punjab

Foreign Companies

Individuals

Others

Total

Mr. Sohail Inam Ellahi
Mr. Pervez Inam
Mr. Yousuf Jan Muhammad
Mr. Ismail H. Ahmed
Brig. Naveed Nasar Khan (Retd)
Mr. Naeem Ali Muhammad Munshi
Mr. Jan Ali Khan Junejo
Ms. Naueen Ahmed
Brig. Haris Nawaz (Retd.)
Total 9

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

NIT and ICP -

Category of
shareholder

Shares
Held

PercentageNumber
Total Share

holding

 2,924,580
 2,509,638

 -

  4,838,316
 7,759,256
1,909,596

 975
 975
 975
 975
 975

 2,925

 -

 -

 1,559,803

-

 27,849,899

112,222

 7,759,256
 7,053,296
 7,053,296
 4,838,316
 3,344,534
 2,924,580
 2,629,906
 2,509,638

5,434,218

 -

2  10.98

  -

29.34
 -

-

3.15

-

56.30

 0.23

 100

15.68%
14.26%
14.26%

9.78%
6.76%
5.91%
5.32%
5.07%

77.04%

1
2

Executives

1

478

7

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8

-

497

-

 -

1,559,803

-

 27,849,899

112,222

49,471,110

38,112,822

14,514,968

-

-
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Directors,chief executive &
their spouses and minor children



I/We   of

being member(s) of

PAK-GULF  LEASING  COMPANY  LIMITED  holding                       ordinary shares as per Registered

Folio No./CDC A/c No. (for members who have shares in CDS)

hereby appoint  of

      or failing him/her

of

as my/our Proxy to attend and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 32   Annual General Meeting

to  be  held  on  Friday, October 24, 2025  at 4:30 p.m. and at any adjournment thereof.

As witness my/our hand this day of 2025.

Signed by in presence of

Please affix
Rs. 5/- Revenue

Stamp

Signature of Member(s)Signature and address of witness

Share Folio No./CDC Account No.

A member entitled to attend, speak and vote at a General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to
attend, speak and voter for him/her. A proxy must be a member of the Company.

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointer of this attorney
duly authorised in writing if the appointer is a corporation under its common seal or the hand of an
officer or attorney duly authorised.

The instrument appointing a proxy together with the Power of Attorney if any under which it is signed
or a notarially certified copy thereof, should be deposited at the Company’s Registered Office not later
than 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting.

nd

Proxy Form

Share Folio No./CDC Account No.
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